
DAVID MOORE
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'< Is Le t ' s s ta r t w i th a b r ie f descr ip t ion how you go t invo lved in labor

unions—your family history. Were your parents involved in labor

unions?

R: Well, number one, I was born in the deep south—born in the state of

South Carolina, 1912, and ray father was a fireman on the railroad—

white man's fireman on the railroad. Had those locomotive engines at

that time for a white man, was below his dignity. They only had

blacks. Blacks could never become an engineer, and my folks left

South Carolina back in 1923, and we moved to Columbus, Ohio and I

attended some of the schools in Ohio, and my father had a cousin

working in Detroit. She Ford Motor Company was paying five bucks a

day. I went up there to get some of that big money. Left Ohio. I

wasn't out of school at that time (school wasn't out at that time),

and my mother and father and younger brother stayed. Later on they

moved to Detroit back in 1927-28. And I've been here since. I think

the other part of your question was about the labor movement. I

didn't like Detroit. I left here three times—ran away, went back to

Olio. Third time I left there so I couldn't make it. All nty family

was here, and I stayed here. As you know, the depression hit this

country in 1929, and I came from a large family. There were eleven of

us. 7 boys, 2 girls, plus my mother and father. And naturally being

black we got hit the hardest. Many whites who were hit also—the

depression didn't spare anybody, and everybody. But the blacks was

always the last hired and the first fired. And with a growing family
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o f 7 b o y s a n d 2 g i r l s , i t w a s r e a l d i f fi c u l t f o r u s t o g e t a l o n g . B u t

we st ruggled.

I : A t the t ime your fa ther was employed a t Fbrd?

R: Oh , no . My fa the r was work ing a t t ha t t ime fo r a con t rac to r he re i n
d

Detroit. He didn't go to work for For because he could make more

money f rom the con t rac to r. Worked fo r the con t rac to r. La te r he wen t

to work at the Revere Copper and Brass. But he was laid off—wasn't

work ing. You could see misery and depr ivat ion, hunger and everyth ing

tha t makes l i fe uncomfor tab le was p len t i fu l a round the c i t y o f

Det ro i t . And I used to shove l snow in the w in ter t ime, and p ick ou t

ashes in the summertime and cut grass and do whatever. Not only me,

but everybody in my neighborhood. Whatever way you could make a few

p e n n i e s , w e t r i e d . B u t i n s t e a d o f g e t t i n g b e t t e r , i t g o t w o r s e . A t

that t ime Hoover was st i l l pres ident , and a chicken in every pot and

two cars in every garage was a slogan at that t ime. But we never

could find the chicken or pot to put the chicken in. Damn sure we

cou ldn ' t find a car to pu t in to two garages. Th ings went to happen ing

here in Det ro i t , but people began to get together and d iscuss the i r

p l ight , and as a resul t of that especia l ly those who had been working

and were unemployed, the unemployment counci ls were formed. Al l kind

of ag i ta t ion took p lace. You cou ld see at the t ime some of the best

people, I thought, come forward who had not been given the opportunity

to do so by speaking and debating about what should be did, how it

should be did, who should lead and what not. And I was going around

t h e s e p l a c e s , l i s t e n i n g t o e v e r y t h i n g .

I : And w i th the unemp loymen t counc i l s?



D a v i d M o o r e :

R: Unemployment counc i l , yeah. And I began to get acquain ted wi th guys,

women and every th ing . So , I found myse l f deep invo lved . Ev ic t ions

was tak ing p lace. I would jo in up wi th a bunch of guys. They would ,

just for example, set Judy and her fami ly out . No sooner than

ba i l i f f s and she r i f f s l e f t , we 'd go and pu t t hem back i n .

I : How did they arrange those? What was the arrangement? How did you

know when people were being evicted? Did you have neighborhood

watches?

R: Well , the news was spread something—Howard Jones is going to be

ev i c ted i n t he nex t b lock . A t t ha t t ime i t seemed l i ke t he dep ress ion

was not a lways bad. I t b rought peop le more c loser together. And they

shared the common, I would say, bad things with each other. And the

g o o d t h i n g s a l s o . I t s e e m e d l i k e m o r e u n i t y a t t h a t t i m e . I t w a s

more unity among the black and white people here in Detroi t at that

time than it has been here lately when some things supposed to be real

p l e n t i f u l a f t e r a n d d u r i n g t h e w a r, a f t e r t h e w a r a n d w h a tn o t . B u t

during the t ime of the Depression, the whites and the blacks was

c lose ly kn i t ted . B ie work ing c lass peop le , those who were work ing in

the fac tor ies , were do ing the hard co ld work . But in answer to your

quest ion about how did they know that the bai l i f fs were coming,

sometimes they didn't know. They just come and set them out.

Sometmes vice would take place and they'd chase the bai l i ffs away.
.A

You know. Then they'd go and get the police and here come two, three

or four cars of police went in to back them up. Then we had to back

off. But they couldn't stay forever. When they would leave, we'd put

them back in again. And nobody would tell them who put them back in

again. They couldn't keep 24 hours a day 48 hours a night. So we'd
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put them back in. Sometimes they'd get so damn p.o.'d by the many

t r i p s t h e y ' d h a v e t o m a k e . I s i t t h e h e l l w o r t h i t , y o u k n o w. B u t a s

t ime went on, I began to get more involved in th ings. So, I found

myself deep involved in the unemployment councils. And we did many

th i ngs . Demons t ra t i ons , l eafle t s , a rgued w i t h each o the r, deba ted

what should be d id , who should do i t . F ina l ly a b ig th ing happened in

my life, it was when we had the hunger march, back in 1932. I was

involved in that and we al l sect ions of the ci ty and some on our side

of h^e c i ty o f Detro i t , Melv indale, Hamtramack, Dearborn, Wyundot te—

these are a l l suburbs of Detro i t . I don ' t know whether you know about

them or not , but I 'm pret ty sure people have to ld you, you ta lked to

some of the guys you said. Especia l ly Dorash and Boat in. And on that

day, t he De t ro i t con t i ngen t go t a pe rm i t f r om the c i t y counc i l o f

Detro i t to march through the c i ty l imi ts of Dearborn and they said we

cou ldn ' t come any fu r ther. Bu t you see a l l k inds o f vers ions o f how

many people were involved in that march. Newspapers had their

v e r s i o n . E a c h i n d i v i d u a l h a d t h e i r v e r s i o n . I n m y o w n v e r s i o n I

would say at least 80 to 100,000 people. When we got to the ci ty

l imits of Dearborn a place cal led Baby Creek Park, that 's where we had

to make our decision whether we would go on. We decided to go and we

went down Dicks unt i l we got to a p lace cal led Mi l ler Road. There

were people coming from south of Dicks—from Wyandotte and the others,

Inkster, River Rouge, and whatnot , and Detro i t . . .We merged then. We

started to move, they turned the fire hoses on us. Words were

exchanged. We stopped and decided to go on again. And the pol ice

star ted to use tear gas. You ever see some of the p ic tures—everybody

was showing pictures of what happened on that day.
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I : N o , I ' v e r e a d B i l l M c K e e ' s a c c o u n t .

R : B i l l w a s m o r e d e e p l y i n v o l v e d i n i t . I n f a c t , h e w a s o n e o f t h e

l e a d e r s . B i l l a n d I w e r e i n i t . I g o t t o k n o w B i l l a f t e r t h a t . I

g o t c l o s e t o B i l l , r e a l c l o s e t o h i m .

I : He was rea l invo lved w i th the Unemployed Counc i l s , too?

R: Yeah, yeah, he he lped organ ize the unemployment counc i l . And on that

day, tha t ' s when I g rew up to be a man. I was in tha t march . I f I ' d

thought of i t , I 'd have brought some of my p ic tures a long. We got

down to the place called gate 3 on Miller Road by the employment

o f fi c e . A n d t h a t ' s w h e r e a l l t h e fi g h t i n g b e g a n . F i r s t s o m e s h o t s

rang out; tear gas was going; I saw five good guys, three of them were

good f r iends of mine, k i l led. Joey Oak, Coleman Lenny and Curt is

W i l l i a m s , a b l a c k g u y t h a t g o t k i l l e d . H e d i e d l a t e r o n . B u t o n e o f

the guys almost died r ight there in my arms. And Joe Deblasio, a guy

that was shot and fe l l r ight across a cop. Have you ta lked to Chr is

A ls ton , ye t? Tha t ' s t he guy you shou ld ta l k to . C -H-R- I -S , A -L -S-TV-

0-N. He 's up in age now bu t he 's go t a lo t o f knowledge . In fac t , I

go t invo lved in a l l th is because o f Chr is . But he was one o f the

leaders o f i t . O f t he march . He and B i l l McCa i t re were c lose

together. And I saw blood. Black men, white women, black women al l

pu l l i ng t oge the r r i gh t down M i l l e r Road . And I a lways t e l l eve rybody,

that's when I grew up from a boy to be a man. On that day. From then

on, I got more people involved. We, I was the honor guard at the

funera l fo r the guys . One o f the honor guards a t the funera l . One o f

t he b i gges t f une ra l ma rches s i nce I ' ve been he re i n De t ro i t . I don ' t

know what happened before we came, that ever took place in the city of

Detro i t . Took p lace when they bur ied guys. When they had the
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funeral. Come all the way from Fairy down to Woodward and down to

Gran Ci rcus Park . And you cou ldn ' t budge for the crowd there . D id

you ever see the p ic tures of the funeral?

I : No , bu t aga in tha t was i n McK ie ' s book .

R : Tha t was i n 1932 . By 1933 , I go t a r res ted fo r assau l t and ba t te ry on

a po l i ceman. Go t pu t i n j a i l . Go t the he l l bea t ou t o f me . Lo and

behold, Frankl in Delano Roosevelt was elected in 1933. And in May of

1933, I went to a CCC Camp making 5 bucks a month. It was thirty, but

twen t y - five o f i t you neve r saw. I t wen t t o you r f am i l y back home . I

stayed up at three C camp almost 2 years. And lo and behold, I

s ta r ted some ag i ta t ion up there . Sher i f f came ou t a coup le o f t imes.

Wanted to put me in jail. Commander of the camp was guy from up in

Ndrth Dakota someplace, and he kind of understood everything, but, you

can ' t do tha t , you can ' t . You work ing fo r the government , now.

That 's the way the Communists do in Russia. I said, what the hel l the

Communis ts do in Russ ia . I thought I wasn ' t ge t t ing t rea ted r igh t and

everything. So, we had a rebel l ion up there, we had a str ike at CCC

Camp.

I : How many people worked there?

R : I n o u r c a m p , 3 8 5 p e o p l e i n i t . A l l w h i t e o f fi c e r s . N o b l a c k o f fi c e r s

at a l l . And the major i ty in the camp were b lack. We had about , must

have been about 30 or 40 white in the camp. We had people from

Michigan, Ind iana, Ohio, Des moines, Iowa, St . Louis , Missour i and

I l l i no i s and a l l pa r t s o f t he m idwes t . We we re t he fi r s t g roup t o go

out . And we caught he l l . We s tayed r igh t in For t Wayne. For t Wayne

was the home of the second infantry d iv is ion of the Uni ted States

Army. You ever been out at Fort Wayne? This contingent, now, and we
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styed there three weeks, then they shipped way up to the northern part

o f Mich igan.

I : I ' v e h e a r d i t ' s v e r y c o l d u p t h e r e .

R : 3 5 b e l o w z e r o . A n d w e w e r e l i v i n g i n t e n t s . A n d w e w e r e g i v e n o l d ,

d iscarded Wor ld War I un i fo rms. I go t some p ic tu res on tha t . 1935,

at n ight i t would get so co ld , the p ine t rees would jus t pop, you

know. Bu t we had to do i t . I t wou ld g i ve us fleace- l i ned underwear.

Just o ld canvas tents. But you now, I don' t know, none of us caught

co lds , ha rd ly. Nobody d ied o f pneumon ia . Bu t they d id bu i ld ba r racks

la te r on . Bu t I was t he l as t one t o go i n to t he ba r racks . So , I r an

in to one o f the o fficers that was a doctor out o f Chicago. A guy by

the name of Dr. Epstein, David Epstein. And I had had some knowledge

o f fi r s t a i d . I h a d p a s s e d t h e s e n i o r fi r s t a i d a n d t h e j u n i o r fi r s t

aid tests. Red Cross tests. And he was asking for anybody who had

any medical training. You'd be surprised you had guys who had one

y e a r o f c o l l e g e . B u t I g o t a j o b i n t h e h o s p i t a l . I g o t p r o m o t e d .

Instead of get t ing five bucks a month, I was get t ing eleven bucks a

month. And I stayed up there almost two years. Then I was

d ischarged. We cou ldn ' t s tay over two years . Twenty-months was the

l im i t . I came back he re i n 1935 , back to De t ro i t . And I go t a j ob

out at Breaks Mfg. Co. at Chrysler. Got used to making bodies for

Chrys le r. And fo r the who le GM se tup . I go t h i red in the re , 32 cen ts

an hour, lhey had a l l the b lack guys sand ing the bod ies w i th the i r

hands. And you cou ld sand. A f te r you worked e igh t hours o f jus t x

number of days or weeks and you just got so t ired. 32 cents an hour.

They was paying the blacks 32 cents an hour to sand after they passed

out to another section of the l ine and the bodies were sanded out and
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then went to where the white guys were who put what you call the

primer on and they were gett ing 36 cents an your. 4 cents more an

hour than we were. But we had to do all the hard work. And they went

to another sect ion in the lot where they sprayed paint on and they

were gett ing 4 cents an hour more than the other white guys were. But

a n y w a y, I g o t i n v o l v e d i n t h e u n i o n , a n d I g o t fi r e d . A n d . . .

I : W h a t u n i o n w a s t h i s ?

R: I t was the UAW.

I: 174? Local 174?

R: No, no, no. That was local 212. I got fired there. That's what it

became. Later on it wasn't in the local at that time. I didn't work

at bteaks but 4 or 5 months at the most. And it wasn't regulated at

that time. You'd go in, they'd send you home. Lo and behold, I was

told that they were hiring at Ford's, 1935. And, in between that

time, there was much activity going on around organizing. And, I ran

into Bill McKie again. So I said, "Look, we're going to organize—
Ok

we're going all out this time." "SO, come on, we can't make it.
I ! J i

We've got too much against us. Come to the meeting over on McGraw

tonight, we're gonna have some of the guys tonight, and we got some

plans." So I started going back and forth to these meetings. So, in

between that time a guy living next door to me said "I got hired at

Ford." He said "I slipped in through the line and I got in the back

door. They hired me. One guy dropped his pass and said, "I got a

pass here if you want to use it." Then, January 17, 1935 I walked all

the way from my home. I was living (I know you're not too familiar

with Detroit) I walked all the way. I left home at 2:30 that morning.

And I got out to Ford round about 4:00. And that line looked like a
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m i l l i o n p e o p l e i n t h a t l i n e , y o u k n o w. A n d I h a d t h i s p a s s . A t 8 : 0 0

the employment office opened up. They had al l the Ford service people

there. And they would let so many come through, and stop, you know.

One guy said, "All those who got a pass come up to the gate." I went

and I got ins ide. They had one b lack guy who d id a l l the h i r ing of

the blacks. No whi te man would hi re blacks.

I : Wa s t h a t t h e g u y t h a t w a s . . .

R : M a r s h a l l , D o n M a r s h a l l .

I : Was he connected wi th some of the churchs before?

R : Ye s . A n d a l l t h e b l a c k s w e r e c o n fi n e d t o t h e f o u n d r y. S o , h e s a y s :

"how much you weigh?" I was weighing 116 at the t ime. I said I weigh

150 . He say, you mus t have rocks in your pocke t . I never w i l l f o rge t

tha t . You ' re h i red . You ' re h i red a t 62 and 1 /2 cents an hour. Wow J

62 cents an hour. ' You ' l l work in the foundry on the shake out . Shake

ou t was the wors t j ob you cou ld ge t . I don ' t know i f you ' re f am i l i a r

w i th foundry work .

I : N o t v e r y m u c h .

R : Yo u p o u r t h a t i r o n . I f y o u ' r e m a k i n g a p i s t o n , t h a t m o l d i s s h a p e d i n

a p i s ton . The i r on come ou t o f t he f u rnace j us t l i ke wa te r. Guys

would come up, and pour that i ron in there, then i t would set so long.

They they would spray water over it, and the steam would come out and

it was hot and you had to go home and shake it out. That's what you

ca l l a shake ou t . A l l tha t fumes coming up .

I : What a re you shak ing ou t—the bubb les?

R: Well , you had l ike a, what do you say, a guy with an amputee on his

a rm, a l i t t l e hook . He wou ld ge t t ha t mo ld i t was i n and j us t t ake i t

a n d s h a k e i t . U n t i l a l l t h a t s a n d c o m e o f f i t . B u t a n y w a y, t h a t w a s
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January 17, 1935, when I got hired. I worked in all that fumes there

for about 3 days and they took me out of there, put me outside on the

shipping dock. Shipping motors. I was weighing 116, and the motors

weighted 600 lb. And I had to help a guy put the motors in a box car

to be shipped out to different parts of the country. I ran into a guy

who's an Italian guy, a real husky guy. "I got you. I got you." And

I'm going to have to hit this guy right on the side of his jaw, and I

know I'm not going to stay here long. But the guy kept telling us,

"don't get mad. I'l l help you all I can." And I would be struggling

with this motor. But I began to get it, there's a way you can handle

it. We had a chain that once we got it on the platform a hoist could

pull it up and stack it.

I: Why did they select you to do that?

R: They didn't care wha± time, as long as you could do it. Everybody

wanted to work, you know.

I: I mean take you out of the foundry.

R: Well, that's a good question. I think what had happened, that the

guys that I was working along with in the foundry had all had black

supervisors, most of them black and Italian, that's what they had.

They didn't want to go outside in the cold weather. It was January,

you know. And it was cold outside on the shipping dock and the wind

was blowing like mad. And I wanted to get away from that steam. I

didn't know what to do when they said shipping docks. You got a

chance to out on the shipping dock. This supervisor was from a place

called Columbia, Tennessee. I never will forget this guy, he had that

real southern accent. How about one of you boys come out here and go

with me out on the shipping dock. I don't care which one. Just get
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you so and so over here and come with me. So nobody made a mad rush,

b u t I w a n t e d t o g e t o u t o f t h a t fi e l d , y o u k n o w. S o , I w e n t o f f . H e

said, son, how much y'al l weigh? Now y'al l come on here. You know

you're gonna have to work with these boys out here on this dock and

pu t t hese mo to rs up . Now, y ' a l l unde rs tand t ha t , don ' t you? Yes ,

s i r J I was go ing to ge t ou t o f t he re . So , I wo rked ou t t he re un t i l

Apr i l when the wea ther began to ge t a l i t t l e be t te r. And lo and

beho ld , they sen t me to a p lace ca l led the Ro l l i ng M i l l . Back in the

h e l l a g a i n , y o u k n o w. T h a t ' s w h e r e t h e y r o l l a l l t h e s t e e l o u t o f . I

guess you know the s tee l m i l l . And I s tayed there . And tha t ' s when I

worked there for awhi le .

I: What did you do when you were there?

R: Wel l , I was work ing over on a p lace what you ca l l a p icke l ing tank ,

where we'd get the steel and put i t in a b ig tank to set for awhi le

t i l i t ' s p i ck led . And then they wou ld go t the fumes cook ing up aga in ,

I wen t f rom He l l to doub le He l l . And , I s tayed the re , and I ran in to

Bi l l McKie again. That 's when the real movement began to organize

here. It began to make the drive on GM and Chryslter and in 1936,

about a year a f te r I 'd worked there , I go t invo lved wi th a guy ca l led

B i l l McK ie . I go t i nvo l ved w i th a guy named Percy Here l l y. O f

course, he 's dead now. Johnny Gal lo . He 's dead. And Boat in , he was

around. And we set up what you cal l the Ford organizing committee.

And things went to happening.

I : Was Shel ton Tappes and Dorash invo lved wi th that a lso?

Q ' -R : Ye a h , t h e y w e r e a l l i n v o l v e d . D o r a s h e s p e c i a l l y. D o r o s h w a s d e e p l y

i nvo l ved i n i t . I guess Wa l te r and I ' ve been f r i ends ove r t he yea rs .

When you mention his name, that's why you see me beam like I did.
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Some of the others had some real outs about them later on. During the

McCarthy era, I haven' t got to that par t . But anyway, we went to one

h e l l o f a n o r g a n i z i n g d r i v e a t F o r d . I w a s fi r e d . I w a s c a u g h t w i t h

UAW l i t e ra tu re i ns i de my sh i r t . I go t t he he l l bea t ou t o f me . They

took me to the desk . Tha t ' s wha t they ca l l ed i t . They took you to

the desk. They said, n igger, i f you ever be caught around the Ford

Motor company again, we' l l k i l l you. And they got me to the gate. But

anyway, through the NLRB cases, we got back. But in the meantime, we

were s t i l l push ing fo r o rgan iz ing . F ina l l y, we o rgan ized GM. GM wen t

on a s i t down s t r i ke i n ' 37 . Ch rys le r was be ing o rgan i zed . Then I ,

Shelton and some of the other guys out at Ford, we were planning,

cause that 's where the big act iv i ty was going on. Gas was s ix cents a

ga l lon a t tha t t ime. Where you go ing to ge t the s ix cents to ge t the

gal lon of gas. Anyway, we'd throw in our pennies and whatnot, and

we'd go up to Fl int to help the guys out there in the s i t down

s t r i k e s . A n d , b u t a f t e r C h r y s l e r , G M w a s o r g a n i z e d . A c t i v i t y

centered around Ford, you know. And i t was just awful . So many

things had happened to guys who was involved in the Ford set up. Ford

was... GM was supposed to be rough. But out of the three, the

brutal i ty and the death, the company went to prevent the union from

c o m i n g i n . . . I m e a n , b e a t i n g s , s h o o t i n g s , a r r e s t s , g o i n g t o c o u r t . H e

con t ro l l ed Dearborn . He had con t ro l o f t he c i t y o f Dearborn ,

e c o n o m i c a l l y. A l l t h e j u d g e s w a s o n h i s i n fl u e n c e , a l l t h e c i t y

p o l i t i c i a n s .

I : R e p r e s s i o n w a s t h e i m p o r t a n t f a c t o r i n t h i s . I n t a k i n g l o n g e r f o r

Ford to get organized.

R : I g o t t h e l a s t p a r t , w h a t w a s t h e fi r s t ?
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I : T h a t r e p r e s s i o n w a s a n i m p o r t a n t f a c t o r t h e n a n d a l l t h i s a n t a g o n i s t i c

act iv i ty by Ford h imsel f and his h i red people was one of the important

fac to rs tha t kep t Ford f rom be ing o rgan ized ear l ie r?

R: One of the impor tant fac tors was Ford had jobs that were more l ibera l

t owa rd t he B lacks . I shou ldn ' t use t he wo rd l i be ra l . The re was

noth ing l ibera l in the bastard . He had a s t ra tegy that was much

d i f fe rent than Genera l Motors and Chrys ler. He bu i l t homes fo r B lacks

out in In$kster and I say homes, they were shacks, he would give them

land they could go out and farm a garden, land to farm garden and you

could go to h is s tores and buy food. I t was someth ing l ike the o ld

concept in the south, the company store, I guess you heard this song

about the coa l miners . I owe my sou l to the company s tore . Wel l , in

this case you owed your soul to the Ford Motor Company if you

pa r t i c i pa ted i n h i s p l an . I n B i l l McK ie ' s book he g i ves you a be t t e r

descr ip t ion o f i t tha t I th ink anybody cou ld ever g ive and a f te r he

gave you al l this he said now you got to pay. But anyway General

Motors and Chrysler they didn' t have Blacks on any machine. The best

you could do was work cleaning up the floors, mopping in the

restrooms, in the men's restrooms and th ings l ike that , but Ford had a

spr ink l ing o f B lacks here and there in the d i f fe ren t bu i ld ings and he

showed a l i t t le more I would say generosity and understanding by not

j us t comp le te l y, t h i s i s a l l wh i t e and t h i s i s a l l b l ack because he

even had whi te 's in the foundry. Most o f them were fore ign born.

I t a l i a n s , P o l e s , U k r a n i a n s , t h i n g s l i k e t h a t . H e h a d a s p r i n k l i n g o f

B lacks in the moto r bu i ld ing . Tha t ' s where a l l the moto rs were

assembled and what not. He had them on some pretty nice jobs. And

the big point in organiz ing Ford, why i t was so hard in my opin ion,
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was because you had number one, you had the brutality to force

workers, on the part of Ford. Some people in my opinion was not

ra ised to face the bruta l i ty. Number 2, you had h is propaganda going

that i f the p lant is un ion ized we are go in j t to c lose i t down,

especia l ly to Negroes. You are not a l lowed to even go to meet ings in

un ions . They go t separa te loca ls , sure d id , AFL, a l l o f them had

Blacks. To become a member of AFL union you could'nt sit in a

meet ing, part ic ipate in a meet ing wi th Whites, you had to have your

own separate local, your own separate meetings and what not. This was

one of the st rategies he used. And th is was to h is advantage. Some

of the Blacks at that t ime were ready to join the union based on what

they had known, what their fathers had told them, some of what they

went through themselves. Some of the White 's were not ready to jo in

the unions because they had a lot of the southern White government

work ing a t the p lan t . Bu t desp i te a l l o f tha t my answer to your

quest ion is that these are the two factors I th ink that caused the UAW

to take as long to break through at Ford than they did at GM and

Chrysler. Because i t was just one-s ided at GM and Chrysler. They

didn't have any Blacks anyway but at Ford you did have a sprinkl ing.

That caused some apprehension I would say on the part of some of the

Blacks and some of the Whi tes . Be ing a l i t t le apprehens ive about jus t

coming s t ra ight forward and jo in ing the un ion and whatnot . They had

spies. They had all kinds of methods that were used by the company

and not used by GM and Chrysler such as guys visiting your home and

going back and reporting to the company that Judy had a meeting at her

house last night. Joe Blow was there, Sal ly Rose was there, so and so

and so. So, wel l Judy, we are go ing to have to lay you off . We don ' t
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have any more work for you. And they would send you out and somebody

else would come r ight in and take your job. They didn' t have any

consideration of how long you had been there, al l they wanted to know

is to find ou t wha t were your ac t i v i t i es as fa r as p ro o r an t i -un ion

and I th ink th is in answer to your quest ion, of course that would be

m y a n s w e r t o i t . B u t d e s p i t e a l l o f t h a t i t d i d n ' t p r e v a i l t h r o u g h

meet ings and leaflets propaganda, determinat ion I would say on the

par t o f guys l i ke Dorosh, guys l i ke B i l l McKie , guys l i ke Tony

Moranivich, they were determined and I think out of that came the

rea l , I wou ld say e f fo r ts on the par t o f ind iv idua ls and what no t to

organ ize Ford . The las t one we organ ized o f the b ig th ree . We d idn ' t
O

organize Ford unt i l 1941. We had general motors on i ts knees in '37.

We had Chrysler almost in '35. Some of the sub-plants Chrysler owned

at the t ime l ike Thompson Products making par ts for Chrys ler. The

cond i t ions in the p lan t were jus t m iserab le . You go in there and you

started at 7:00 in the morning you had to be on that job at 5 minutes

to 7:00. You had to be standing there when that bel l rang before the

echo of that bel l was over you had to be performing your job. But

1941 we organized the union.

I : D id you see a b ig change in the a t t i t ude o f t he worke rs i n the p lan t

before and a f te r i t was un ion ized?

R : A t t h a t t i m e ? Ye s , i t w a s a b i g c h a n g e i n a t t i t u d e . I t w a s a l m o s t a

99% turnaround—100% turnaround. They were more defiant to the

superv iso rs . They had then , hav ing the i r say so . The un ion say ing

well, we are going to work, Judy was involved in an argument or the

foreman, d isagreed wi th the superv isor, everybody in that depar tment

could s top work and come to Judy 's defense. Unfor tunate ly, the war
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started. All of this militancy being demonstrated by the workers and

it was a big turnaround. And it was. It was there. The militance.

It was there. The desire and cooperation among each other, the

concern for each other especially at Local 600. I don't think there

was any, in fact I know by experience in the labor movement, there was

never a local in the whole UAW that I have known where the solidarity

and the togetherness and the brotherhood was more exhibited by the

Blacks and the Whites as in the Local 600.

I: Why do you think that was the case of the Local 600?

R: Well, I think it was because first, no. 1, because of the people who

were involved in organizing Local 600.

I: Did you have accommodations?
1

R: Guys like a Dorosh, guys like a Bill McKie, iSuys like a Johnny Gallo,

and who had not only said it, but demonstrated by action the only way

we are going to ever get beat by the Ford Motor Company or get some

recognition, all of us got to be together. We should not be divided

based on race. What happens to Judy as a White woman happens to Dave
-p

Moore as a Black man or Sally jones as a White woman. And this was

instilled in the Ford workers. They had a close-knit brotherhood

there. There is still some semblance of it still existing today but

not like it did at that time, '41 on up until just a few years ago, in

fact you know. A big turnaround was made. But it was because of guys

that I have mentioned, like Percy Llewellyn, Bill Moranivich and all

these guys, a lot of them I could mention. But the official answer to

your question is that because of the leadership and the particular

type of the individuals who were involved in organizing the Ford plant

at that time. Because they, the byword in this system was, it was
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either together, or it could be apart and the only way we are going to

accomplsh our objective is we got to be, regardless of what your

religion or your political thing, your ethnic background or your

racial identity may be, and they wouldn't tolerate it. And the guys I

never seen anything like it before. I haven't seen it happen since.

It was just something that no Blacks were living in Dearborn at the

time. But the Whites who was living in Dearborn at the time were more

friendly, they were inviting Blacks, and it had never happened before

but you used to go and heck we had, it was a complete solidarity and

understanding and brotherhood in my opinion what happened there. And

to me it's unfortunate it just doesn't exist anymore. Different

bread, and different attitude; different leadership altogether.

I: Do you think another part of that might be that more Whites were

working with Blacks since there were more Blacks in the plant?

R: Well, that could have been it. But before, during the organization,

rather, Ford tried to use the race issue to keep them apart but again

I have to go back to the hgh point of the Ford organizing drive,

exhibited by the Whidie and the Black organizers. In all the meetings

that you would go to that would be the first point you got to

understand that the Ford Motor Company is doing. They are trying to

divide you because you may be the word Negro then, you be a Negro and

he's White. Or you may be Catholic and you may be Protestant. He

did, he used all kind of tactics because you live at Dearborn or

because you live in Detroit. And that taught me a hell of a lesson as

far as understanding and getting people to realize and understand what

the real issues are and exhibited not only out at Ford, for the years

to come in the city of Detroit. The police department and what not.
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There used to be a time when Black guys couldn't work in Detroit

Police Department. Out of 6,000 policemen you had 23 Blacks. But I

always said that whatever the leadership of any organization does, it

reflects on the membership. And it most certainly happened that Ford

during the organizing drive in the UAW. Those in charge of the

leadership or organizing the UAW in the Ford plant exhibited and

carried out in their own way and handed it on down to the membership

and nowhere in the UAW have I witnessed any examples of brotherhood

more than I have seen in the Local 600. And that goes all the way

after we organize it to conventions and where, discrimination is still

rampant in our society but you take back in the 40s and 50s there were

some hotels where Black delegate to a UAW convention you couldn't get

in there. But out of Local 600 were were fined if a Black guy was

being refused admittance to a hotel or motel and that hotel was almost

torn apart and would have been torn apart if they didn't give them a

room you know. White guys was doing it for us, you know. And we even

had run-ins with other locals in the UAW. The White guys did from 600

and defending Black guys, you know. Some of the White guys from other

locals around the country just what in the hell are you doing, oh,

he's a Negro, he can't do it, he can't eat in this room with the rest

of us, you know, these are White guys. God damn it, if he don't eat

in here, nobody is going to eat, you know. And we put up a picket

line, sometimes we did, the White guys themselves would organize. But

at some point time catches up with them. Most of them gone on now,

some of them dead and gone a lot of them retired and not active

anymore but these are things that happenned. And after it was

organized then war came and a lot of Blacks and Whites came from the
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South here. Housing become an issue. Certain places in the city

didn't want Blacks. Projects were being built. We in Local 600 were

insisting that these projects being built by the Federal Government

using money is open to everybody. Even some of the damn government

officials say well, you can't do that. You can't let Blacks in here,

you can't let Whites in here either. And they tried to pit some of

our own White guys against the Blacks, moving in different projects

but we the Whites and the Blacks would picket and demonstrate

together. We fought for integrated housing, at that time during the

war. We got a damn war going, our future is at stake, and you say

Hitler is th enemy, damn it to hell you're going to be saying if the

guy on the verge of going to the Army to give up his life of defense

of you, and you're telling us that he can't live here. Here he got

his draft papers in his pocket and looking for a place for his family

to live to go to defend this place and you tell me that he can't live,

well to hell with that crap. And as I say I go back again these were

things that were did by guys from 600. We had some from other, I

won't say that other locals were just anti-Black. You had individuals

in those locals but it was not as overwhelming and together in the

other locals in Detroit in areas as it was in the local 600.

I: Were you successful in any of those attempts to get the government to

integrate housing?

R: Was I involved in it—

I: Were you successful?

R: Oh yes, oh yes. I'll give an example. You take the Sojourner Project

out here in northeast Detroit, that was one. You take the Herman

Gardens over here on the West Side, that was one. And you take the
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neighborhoods themselves where individual housing, where Blacks had

never lived before in some neighborhoods here in the city of Detroit.

The only time they were there they were serving as domestics, or

chauffeurs or something like that. But you would always find we had

what you call a flying squad at Local 600. Wherever there was a

trouble spot you had this flying squad. These were guys we called the

head crackers you know. Black and White. I got my uniform home yet.

And it's all in the part, but I tried it. And wherever there would be

troublespot whether it was involving the union or whatever it was, if

it was involving a worker, whatever the problem was Black or White

worker the Flying Squad from Local 600 is going over to give this guy

some help. We want 50 guys here at 6:00 tomorrow morning, we are

going to go to Samanski's house, Samanski's having some trouble with

the police department you know. Or he is having some trouble with

this, whatever it was we were there, you know.

I: It sounds like you sort of modeled after the teams that went out with

the unemployed councils, the groups of guys that—

R: Yeah, well that's where we took our, in fact we were the first local

and the whole UAW organized what you called a Flying squad. They took

all their locals followed our lead later on. So but during the time

of the organization of Ford many people were beaten and they have het

scars today to show for it. Some people were murdered. I'll give you

an example, this Hunger March. And you could take the battle of the

Overpass when Walter Reuther, Dick Frankenstein and Dick Leonard and

the rest of them were beaten openly with the police standing right

there. I guess you saw pictures.

I : Ye a h .
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conven t ion , the ' 43 conven t ion , the ' 46 conven t ion , the ' 47

conven t ion , the ' 48 conven t ion , the ' 49 conven t ion , the ' 50

convent ion, you wi l l see that th is issue was one of the main issues of

the conven t ion . And I 'm p roud to say tha t I was invo lved in i t .

I : A n d w a s L o c a l 6 0 0 i n v o l v e d i n i t ?

R: Yes, Loca l 600 was car ry ing the torch—Black and Whi te . And we got to

a poitn whre i f you wanted to say anything about integrating the UAW

execut ive board wi th a Black you were cal led a communist . Wel l ,

before that they had nothing to hang on, they would just have the

majority and we could never beat them. But they advocate a Black on

the UAW beginning in 1947—'46 and '47, you wi l l f ind that the issue

of communism was the main wedge and the main hammer they had to use

against those who were advocating the Black people on the UAW

execut ive board. As a resul t of that we were branded. Some guys got

defeated in the i r loca l un ion by o thers who c la imed to be red, whi te ,

and blue Americans and saying that he was a member of or he just

fol lowed the issue you were in favor. I f you were a White person who

was in favor o f defending or suppor t ing anyone say i t ' s t ime for a
vBlack to be on the UAW executie board, you were branded as a Red at

that t ime. The record showed th is . Th is is not what Dave Moore is

saying. This is what the UAW record shows. And i f you care to look

a t t h e p r o c e e d i n g s o f t h e c o n v e n t i o n , y o u w i l l fi n d o u t . S t a r t i n g i n

1947 you wi l l find out tha t tha t las ted a l l the way up th rough the

McCarthy era. And I had been one of the guys and I 'm proud of i t .

And i f I had to do i t aga in , I would do i t w i th more determinat ion.

And I would do it with more force and I would do it with more

knowledge than I had at that t ime and I would never retreat on i t .
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R: But that's just one example. People want to highlight that. Well, I

said want to, maybe they highlight it. But the true history, I say

just the true history and I make this a point I will not retreat on

that, I don't give a goddam who tries to correct me when they say it's

not true history the labor movement and the union organization of

plants here in Detroit has never been written. The true history.

I: You mean from the rank and file perspective.

R: Yeah, from the standpoint of the rank and file. And the true,

especially the participation and the contribution that the Blacks made

in organizing the union here in this town it has never been written.

And it has been deliberately concealed. When I say deliberately, I

can prove it was deliberate. And this has been one of my sore spots

with the leadership of the UAW, including Walter Reuther, he's dead

and gone, God bless his soul and he and I had many run-ins on this. I

was kicked out of the UAW for 12 years along with Johnny Gallo, along

with Paul Boatin and along with others. But I was kicked out and even

after we made all this fight with the companies and whatnot the same

damn discrimination began to involve itself in the UAW as a whole, not

just from 600 but other locals around the country and at conventions.

I was among those who took Walter on many times about discrimination

in the UAW and the record shows that from the time we organized the

UAW no Blacks, man or woman sat on the board in any major position up

until 1961. It took us that long to get it, 1961, yeah 1961 and yet

they were going all around the damn country hollering about democracy

and what the UAW stands for. And this was one of ray sore spots with

Walter and others around him and others before him and others to come

on. And if you look back in the scenes of the UAW convention, Buffalo
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You're talking about a Democratic union and how it's functioned and

whatnot. But dammit to hell demonstrate it to me in action, instead

of words. But lo and behold beginning in the late 40s communism

become a big issue, not only in the labor movement but throughout the

country. I don't know whether you and your husband were around maybe

at that time or weren't around, I'm pretty sure your mother and father

can tell you about it. I don't know what backgrounds you came from,

what kind of family background you have. But if your mother and

father knew Dave Moore and was a friend of them, the FBI, the Red

Squad in that city would come to your mother and father's house—oh, I

know that Dave Moore was over visiting you. How long have you been

knowing him. What's his activities. Has he ever asked you come to a

social affair. He's Black and you are White. Why would you go. And

if you were to tell them, well he's my friend, I don't give a damn

what his political affiliation, I don't know his political affiliation

is, I don't know what it is. I never have asked him. He is a friend

of mine. Well, we want you to keep inviting him over. But we want

you to make a report to us everytime he comes over. What he says to

you blah, blah, blah. And you say well, I'm not going to be a damn

stool pidgeon, you know. Then they brand you. Then you lose your

job, you know. The word passes on wherever you go. But anyway, back

to the UAW again. Beginning in 1946 and '47 the change began in the

UAW and that change in ray opinion was not for the better but for the

worse. That's when the McCarthy era began to come in. And sometimes

you sit back and you wonder people who you have been so close to and

people who have sat at your table and ate with you, people you have

fraternized with, people you'd loan money to when they needed money,
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people that your wife or your kids went over and helped when they were

sick or they needed assistance whatever we were, through fair, and (?)

and they turned on you. They will see you coming and they wouldn't

speak to you. You know they would tell their kids don't play with

them, don't you go over there anymore and even in the church when they

wouldn't sit beside you in the church, this happened to ray father not

because my father was involved or anything but because of me. I was a

great admired supporter of Paul Robeson, Dr. Dubois and knowing ray

affiliation and my background in the UAW and some of the things that

happened in the UflW, that is to say, I was put on trial in ray local
I,union. Five of us. They called us the Forb five. I don't know

whether Dorosh told you about this or Boatin told you about this. No

charges were leveled against us. No witness, all got a notice. And I

found out in the paper. I was on ray way to work, I was holding the

position of vice-president and the bargaining committeeman at the time

at my Plant.

I: The vice president of what?

R: I was vice president of the bargaining committee at the Gear and Axle

plant at that time. And on my way to work one day I picked up a paper

and the administrator had been put over locals and five UAW officials

removed from jobs. Nobody ever said anything to me about me. Low and

behold I got the plant and said well, you are to go back on your

regular job classification. I had been elected, democrat ical ly

elected. I'll be damned if I'm going back on the job. I was elected,

if the people want to send me back on the job its the people who voted

for me, when they vote me out of office. Well, the hierarchy of the

UAW sent a communication to the Ford Motor Company and said these
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people are no longer holding union positions here. Well, we raised

hell about it so finally they put us on trial. The trial lasted

almost two and a half years.

I: All this time you were off. You were out of your official position?

R: Yeah, the only thing that saved me completely, out at the plant was

the Taft-Hartley Act itself as much as I fought against the Taft-

Hartley Act. But the Taft Hartley Act had in it. a clause "No union

official can ever be denied his right to work." He will be denied his

right to hold elected or appointed office, but he cannot be denied his

right to work for the plant. With my record with the Ford Motor

Company at that time when I had to go back on the job they were glad

to see me come back. They were glad to see me come back because they

were going to give me one hell of a time and they did. The job that I

had before I got elected to the union position was as an inspector.

I: In the Gear and Axle plant?

R: I believe it was at that time that began the Black period of UAW

leadership, concerning B. Bradley (?), what they called a member or
9

subservient to the Communist Oarty. We went through one hell of a

deal for 12 or 13 years, about 13, years, trials and the like, and we

won. Accusations without any witnesses. No dealing of particulars.

Just automatic that he used to say, hey you, we don't want you either

a member of or subservient to the Communist Party. But you walked.

You were supposed to divide the top leadership of the UAW. Well, the

administrators over at Local 600 took out all the elected officers,

the President on down. That lasted for some time, then they were

raising so much hell that they lifted the administratorship, put some

of the officers back and others they kept out, including me. And I
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appealed, went all through the appeal stages and the UAW executive

board, UAW convention. Well, I was found innocent by the General

Council, the highest legislative body of the Local 600, I was found

innocent by the executive board of Local 600, I was found innocent by

the membership of Local 600. Despite all of that the International

Union said the hell with what the membership, what the board says,

what the General Council says, we say he's guilty. Without any trial.

Finally came up with at the convention, and said we are going to give

him a trial after four years they decided to us a trial. We

threatened to go to court. And the trial committee, you can

understand who held the trial, the trial committee was composed of all

the present UAW officers at that time, you know. Naturally, they

found us guilty. And we raised hell and the next 8 to 9 years, in

1963 we got a lawyer and threatened to go to court and the lawyer

called Walter Reuther one morning and said I got five guys from Local

600 sitting in my office you can put them back on their elected jobs

and give them full status in the union and the UAW or we'll go to

court. And all of a sudden they wanted to meet with us. We decided

to go down for a meeting and then they wanted us to sign a paper and I

wouldn't sign a goddam thing. This is the same thing you offered me

about 12 years ago.

I: What was that?

R: That I'm not a member of the Communist Party I'm not subservient to

the Communist Party, I don't know anybody who is a member of the

Communist Party and all that junk. But if there is a threat of going

to court they would put us back. They put us back, I guess they

played their politics wrong. Three months later, after they put us
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back with full citizenship and full status they had an election in the

Local 600. All five of us ran for election and got elected.

I: After all those years?

R: After all those years. We beat guys who had been entrenched, who was

unbeatable. All five of us got elected with overwhelming votes.

Overwhelming votes, we got elected. And we stayed elected. Ed lock,

Johnny Gallo, Paul Boatin, Daey Moore.

I: Nelson Davis.

R: Yeah, Nelson Davis. And, as I said, we held our positions. See at

the time they took us out they couldn't defeat us. They had been

trying to defeat us all the time, with candidates running against us.

I know, I don't think, I know what kept us in office, despite the

pressure, despite the awesome power of the UAW and all of its officers

and despite the FBI and despite the Red squadron in the city of

Detroit and despite all of the federal and local and county agents who

at that time was just looking for every Red under a bed. We stayed in

office, we got elected. And we got elected based on what I know was

what we have stood for in organizing the UAW in the first place. This

understanding of solidarity we had with the rank and file people.

They trusted us with any kind of problem they had. They knew that if

they had a gripe with the supervisor or foreman that we wasn't going

to sell them out, that we were going to go all the way with their

case, which we did. We would be honest with them and say well, look,

you were wrong but we are going to fight for you any damn way. We

don't know whether we are going to win. And my experience was that

they appreciated that effort because I don't give a damn how wrong for

example Judy would have been with her supervisor just remember what
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Judy had to go through before the union got in there. Judy had no

goddambody to defend her. Whatever that supervisor said or whatever

Ford Motor Company said, Judy could have been as innocent as hell, but

yet she was guilty without any form of representation at all. And I

said if Judy made a mistake and was guilty, I'll be damned if I was

going to go along with the supervisor and tell Judy well you are

guilty, there is nothing I can do, I'm going to tell judy privately

you did wrong but damnit to hell I'm going to fight for you anyway.

We are going to make a fight of it. I don't know whether we are going

to win, but we are going to push them to the wall. We are not going

to give an inch. And people really appreciated it.

I: You said there was a turnaround just a few years ago in Local 600.

Can you explain a little bit about that?

R: What's this.

I: You said there was a turnaround in the character of the local just

recently.

R: Not only the Local 600 but in the whole UAW. The whole UAW has

changed. But it didn't change so much within the local. But it began

to change at the top level leadership of the UAW and it was passed on

down to the locals. And it used to be when a guy or woman got elected

to a position at Local 600, especially Local 600 I'm going to say in

some other locals around the country also, that was an honor. It was

an honor to get elected to serve 400 or 500 people. That's what our

union did, represented 400 and 500 people in a district. Fulltime.

Devoted fulltime, you didn't work on the machine. You devoted

fulltime to your constituents in that district. And to get 4- and

5,000 people or 4- and 500 people to elect you to a/itistrict to
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represent them is just like getting a city council, that you were

getting elected to, you know because that's how many people were

voting for you in that district. That's just a district alone, you

were district committeeman. Now, if you ran for the bargaining

committee or the president of your unit, your building, you had all

the way from 8, 9, 10, 12 and 15,000 people all depends on what unit

you were in voting for you. And some cities didn't have 15,000 people

voting for you. You were on the bargaining committee and the

president of that unit. And some of the unit had as high as 15- and

16,000 people in it out there at Local 600. We had 80,000 people.

One time we went up to 102,000 at Local 600. It was and still is the

largest local in the world. Even though it's diminished now. But

when you had that kind of confidence and leadership they prided

themselves in being selected. They looked at the company

representative as an enemy. They didn't expect anything from the

company representive because they said we are going to let you work 12

hours or we are going to give you credit for 12 hours a day, seven

days a week you go out to the plant anytime. Don't worry about Judy

and her husband. This came about in ray opinion because of the

leadership of the UAW. They did not, as the older guys went to

retire, dye out, top leadership in the UAW did not entrench, educate

the coming young leadership in the UAW about the hardships and how

this union was organized, the brutality of the company, they are not

your friend, if they are your enemy. You must all time be on guard to

protect what you have and gain more and even don't give up a damn

thing, keep what you got and always get more that was our slogan back

in 40s and the 50s and even to the 60s. And in spite of my
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differences with Walter Reuther I'll say that he was in his grave or

wherever his ashes may be, he's fighting like hell today. I had many

differences with Walter. I don't think Walter would have did some

things, as far as a leader is concerned but the present UAW leadership

is doing what they had done in the past. The things that we have won,

I don't think we would have been given up. And I know the guys who

came along before who were president before Walter, R. J. Thomas, Dick

Leonard and those guys, no. They wouldn't have ever given up

anything. They would have never made any concessions. But now you

have a different breed in the UAW. A different breed in many ways.

You have a different breed in leadership. You have a different breed

of personnel, and a different breed of the workers. And I know my

experience has always been that if the leadership gives militant

leadership you will have a militant membership. If you have a

conservative leadership, you will have a conservative membership.

That doesn't mean that the membership is agreeing with everything the

leadership has giving. But they had no one to go to bat for them when

they faced the onslaught and the awesome power from the Ford Motor

Company. Let's now be nice to the company, let's get a team, company

with a program going where we share the responsibility. Well, the

hell with the damn responsibility. That's their responsibility. All

we are saying is this is your plant, we are saying we got a union in

here, we are saying our people are going to have dignity and pride on

the job, we are saying they are going to be respected by your foreman

and supervisors, we got a contract with you, we expect you to live up

to it. You are saying that your company has a right to manage their

own business, the company has a right to do this, the company has
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right to do that, okay you got that right, but you are going to

exercise that right with some kind of responsibility. The contract

says you got to do this. But now. There are today concessions. The

order of the day is pitting one plant against another plant. The

order of the day is presenting one department against another

department. It's finally got down one worker against the other worker

which we fought so damn hard to eliminate. People died to prevent

this kind of thing from continuing to happen. People got murdered,
i

people got eaten, people went to jail, people suffered, people lost

their jobs, people were ostracized to prevent the very thing that's

happening today.

I: Is that happening in Local 600, too?

R: Oh yes. But they have made concessions. They got one. The company

said well to give you an example, the Steel Mill at Local 600. If you

don't give concessions in the steel mill we are going to close it

down, or we will take our operation and sell it to Japan. Or, in the

assembly plant, they say if you don't get us concessions here in the

assembly plant here in Local 600 we are going to do our assembly work

in St. Louis or we will divide this work load to St. Louis, San Jose,

wherever there is an opening, New Jersey. That's the way they do it.

I'll give another example. You take in Local 600 membership has voted

that they would never give up any more concessions. And local 600 as

recent here I would say a year ago and the UAW under the present

leadership and Owen Bieber who won the election down in Dallas, his

inaugural speech was that I will never give any more concession. The

UAW will never, the concessions are over. And he was applauded,

standing ovation, newspapers carried big headlines. But concessions
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still goes (/). And I said to myself, being one of the founders,

organizers whatever you want to call it. I made ray contributions and

I give less than a damn who disagree with me what I'm going to say.

But the UAW is not the UAW that some people died for, some people was

maimed for. Some people sacrificed. It's not the UAW that we once

knew. They said well, times have changed. You got to have more

partnership with the companies. I'm not against, the partnership.

That partnership doesn't go to the extent of taking away from the

workers that we already have. I see what's happening today.

I: Back in the 40s when you were talking about all measures taken to get

the left wingers out of office, why do you think Reuther was so

concerned with getting his people in and the left wingers out?

R: Well, Reuther acted just like any other politician would act. At that

time communism was a powerful issue to be used by politician to get

himself elected, not only in the UAW and the union or anything,

generally. City government wherever election, where you were involved

in politics. There were forces in the UAW never did want to see

Blacks get the recognition that they deserved for the contribution

they made during the organization part of the UAW. Not just talking

about Ford, but I'm talking about General Motors, Chrysler, all of

them. You should know this. Racism is a part of our society, I don't

give a damn what nobody say you can disagree with me if you want to,

but you being White maybe never had to face racism. I had to face it

ever since I was born. My mother and father faced it. My grandfather

and grandmother faced it, my great-great faced it ever since that ship

sailed along the shores of Africa. And for any major White

organization or institution to come along and advocate equality of all
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of its members at that time and even today to a certain extent, at

that time was not a popular stand for a White person to take, for that

membership consisted of the majority of White, almost 80 percent or 90

percent White you know. But there were some Whites who were willing

to do that and they did do it. And they wanted that based on what we

had went through in Local 600 and other locals to a lesser degree. To

be part of the UAW's history and to be part of the UAW's way of

advocating democracy itself. And some elements in the UAW didn't want

that. And they not only didn't want it they would damn sure be

willing to go to hell and back to prevent it. And they did. And when

the issue of communism came along, well it was grabbed and seized upon

by those in the labor movement as well. If you read the history of

the labor movement, many people were eliminated not only in the UAW,

not only by Walter Reuther but throughout the whole labor movement,

the UAW, the Longshoremen, the textile workers, the farm workers,

wherever a union was if you advocated anything, well, I'll go back and

give you an example. Take a look at the proceedings in 1949 UAW

convention in Milwaukee, a guy named Bill Johnson, a Black guy made

one of the most profound speeches on why a Negro should be advanced to

the UAW executive board, and the answer to that was that you are

following the communist party line. The only people who wanted to

have a Black on the UAW, executive board is a communist or communist

sympathizer. And this is nothing but communist propaganda. That's

the answer they gave us. I said we had supporters. This wasn't all

just coming from 600. We had supporters from other locals throughout

the whole country at these conventions on this issue. But in answer

to your question as to why he wanted to do it, he wanted to eject
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himself, wanted to get himself elected to office. Once he got elected

to office on that issue he wanted to continue to stay in office.

Especially those who he had branded as communists or sympathizers to

communists who was disagreeing with him. And this is the way he

eliminated them, if he couldn't defeat them by elections in their own

locals, some were defeated. Some were defeated by a democratic

election. Those that he could not defeat he used undemocratic ways to

get them out. He took them out (?).

I: And that's basically what happened at 600?

R: And despite the contitution they are saying that everybody is entitled

to hold office regardless of race, political affiliation or religious

or ethnic affiliation, national origin. That was the constitution.

Regardless of political affiliation, national origin or religion every

member of the UAW is entitled to hold office that was the

constitution. And that's what we fought on. Even if I am one, the

constitution says I have a right. This is the constitution that you

voted for when we organized the UAW. But you know what happened, they

changed that.

I: When did they change it?

R: They changed that at the 1953 convention in Atlantic City. Even

though we had been taken out back in 1950. That's when they took us

out. And I didn't get back until 1963—13 years I was out.

I: Why do you think that was in 1948^ I mean it was 1950 when Stellato

came in and they had referendum vote on that loyalty pledge and it

passed, it has a low turnout for the vote but it passed. That every

officer had to sign this loyalty oath.

R: The question is why?
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I: Yeah. What were the circumstances around that vote?

R: Well, the circumstances that was around, I go back to the newspapers

played it up big. This was around the Taft-Hartley Act. You had to

sign a loyalty pledge. Every person who holds a position in a union

local must sign a loyalty pledge. John L. Lewis, president of the

cole miners, John L. Lewis said the hell with the loyalty pledge, and

he wouldn't sign it and we said if it's good enough for, if its' that

bad John L. Lewis, because John L. Lewis gave us a lot of money to

help organize the UAW. And there were guys who on principle, some of

the right wingers. Some right wing guys said the hell with it, I'm

not going to sign it. There were a few but there was a few of them.

And the question is so why it passed? I think it was scary at that

time. If you didn't sign it you were branded as one who didn't sign

it because you must be a member of or a supporter of the Communist

Party. That's why. And it was a low turnout. A speaker wasn't

hardly turn out you know. They were going to move out . And

they passed it and a big fight took place on the floor. Do you

remember Stellato supported Reuther, Reuther got Stellato's full

support for awhile, then Stellato realized that he couldn't stay in

office because the local at that time was right down the middle. And

for his own political future and remained to be president of Local 600

at that time, you carried a lot of prestige and you still do today.

Other locals all throughout the country use to look forward to Local

600 leadership. And Reuther didn't want to see the leadership of

Local 600 spread all over the country like this. Because at

conventions some of his supporters would get up and say if it was good

enough for Local 600 dammit hell it's good enough for me. But the
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hysteria began to spread at that time and I think in answer to your

question I don't think, I know being part of it at that time that

nobody likes for a newspaper or his neighbors to accuse him or suspect

him of being disloyal American, as good American as that individual

may be. And the hysteria that spread, my God. If you read, you'll

see where people would report it. They lost their jobs, they were

crucified, they were called before committees, it was an awful thing.

This lasted all the way up until the 60s, almost.

I: You mentioned about Stellato and when he got in he was elected as a

right winger. Then shortly thereafter switched to be a left winger.

You say that was for political reasons?

R: Yeah. Stellato broke with Reuther. And he got elected with Reuther's

support.

I: Before that was he a left or a right winger?

R: Stellato was a left winger. He took part in all these left wing

activities and Stellato came from a working background family. His

father was killed in the foundry up in Milwaukee. And Stellato had

begged for bread, so he told me and others you know what I mean and

the guy who appointed Stellato on, the international rep is a guy

named Percy Llewellyn. Percy was strictly a leftwinger. And so most

of the guys in 600 were. Most of the guys were left wingers. But the

hysteria started, some of them went back to where they really were in

the first place and in fact Local 600 was a left wing local. You

couldn't get elected at Local 600 if you weren't part of the left wing

caucus, you know. I said the left wing, I mean from a stand, I think

it was what I went back before and said that it was based on

solidarity and brotherhood and I won't say that, but I would say most
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of them had progressive and liberal and left wing enough to believe in

what they thought was right and how they voted. They demonstrated how

did they vote without any pressure, they would come out and they would

vote it if you ran on this ticket and here is what I stand for, they

would make a decision and they would vote for you. And then if it

really got to a point where it was strictly left wing, left wing or

right wing. There was no center. You were either over here or you

were there. And we still prevailed in local 600. We were unbeatable.

The international union could not beat us politically. And so the

only way they could do it if they had to move in and take over through

administratorship. And back to the question of Stellato, Carl took

his orders from the UAW from Reuther when he got elected and he was

part of the deal that had charges against us. But later on he

recanted, said, look I made a mistake. He apologized, look I made a

mistake and he fought just as hard to get us reinstated and he fought

just as hard to get us kicked out, you know what I mean. That's when

he and Reuther broke. You read the proceedings of the UAW convention,

you'll see, well, some of the dirtiest words that ever been said at a

UAW convention between Stellato and Reuther. Reuther made a

statement, Carl was up on the microphone he said your skirt is

hanging, your dirty slip is hanging, you know. Stellato turned around

and used some choice words at him right back at the mic you know. And

this was all over Local 600. But it's a long history, Local 600. I

don't know what your thinking may be. You say you're going to use

this for your dissertation, well, use it. I don't give a damn.
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I: Can you tell a little bit about what the groups that made up the

different wings were. What kind of small organizations made up the

progressive caucus and which the right.

R : Organ iza t ions?

I: Like you know with the right wing we have the ACTU people.

R: Well, I would be lying and I would be and I know you would say I would

be lying if I tell you that there weren't any communists there you

know what I mean. There were people who were open and say, you take a

Bill McKie and you take and all those, they didn't hide it, you know

what I mean. They didn't try to deny it. And Bill McKie was on the

council, said look I'm a member of the Communist Party and here is

what I stand for and so on and so on. But when you say the groups who

made up the left and the groups who made up the right, on the right

you had the ACTU, the Association of Catholic Trade Unions, I believe

it was. And you had the Masons and you had the knights of Columbus.

I : W e r e t h e r e a n y l a n g u a g e c l u b s o r a n y t h i n g t h a t w a s .

R: Language clubs?

I : O r a n y o t h e r e t h n i c g r o u p s t h a t w o u l d b e p a r t o f a ?

R: They belonged to their own different clubs in the neighborhood. But

at local 600 when you talk about the groups that made up the right and

the left I named them, those that I know I don't know anything about

any, it may have been, if they had their own groups in their

neighborhood and whatnot. But I know what it was, you would have the

catholics fighting the Masons or you would have , but they were

part of the right wing. They had differences also, and the left wing

had the Communist Party and you had so-called liberals who wasn't
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members of the Communist Party and you had progressives who wasn't

members of the Communist Party and all of those made up the left.

I: Were they Socialist at all?

R: Oh yea. You had Trotskyites.

I: Which side did they fall on?

R: The Socialists? They would swing back and forth. They would be with

the left for awhile on a certain issue and they would go to the right

for awhile. And you never could tell where the hell they were going

to be. They wasn't a big force there. Small force they had, but it

was in-between on the different issues. It all depends on what the

issues were. I see your husband's getting sleepy....Up until the

present time. He went out on a limb guys like he, Gallo, many other

whites, but Walter (Dorosh) played a hell of a role, and he was

osterized, he was called a nigger lover. He was called a communist,

he was called this, but he stuck to his guns. And I think he made,

along with others he made a major contribution to the cause of civil

rights and equal rights and promotions of Blacks to positions of

leadership in Local 600. He got a hell of a history behind him. I

admire the guy. He's been a friend of mine over the years. And I

have seen him when it was impossible for a white person to do some

things that he did. I will give you an example. In 1973, as late as

1973, when Coleman Young ran for Mayor of the City of Detroit then the

UAW was pushed against the wall as to who it was going to support, you

know the UAW didn't support Young when he ran. Walter was president

of Local 600 at the time and he defied the whole international union

and had Local 600 go on record as supporting Coleman Young. And at

the endorsement meeting Ford Local 174 making decision who was going
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to get the endorsement, Rabids (?) or Rabids was a white, you know.

Walter led a line of people at the mic and Walter was the only White

local union president in the whole Detroit metropolitan area who went

to the microphone and made a public statement as to why Coleman Young

shouldn't be endorsed by the UAW. He was the only one. Not one other

white guy in the whole local setup in Metropolitan Detroit who was

president of a local union, UAW, not only UAW, other local unions went
f t •

to the whi^e. And they didn't like it. But he had the support of the

membership of Local 600 black and White. But you had some Whites in

local 600 who didn't support Coleman. But they were in the minority

but they rushed to the stand. And I will go back to my statement that

I made earlier it all depends on what the white leadership can do as

to how the white membership will react. Give you an example:

Mississippi, Alabama at the time that Kennedy was president at the

time Johnson was president if they hadn't have took the stand in

supporting Rev. King, it would have been a massacre in the South.

When they said look dammit I'll get the federal troops out there they

forced this on them. If the officials in Alabama don't do it, I will

do it and they did it. And there has some resentment, there was

hostility and I think that because of what Kennedy and Johnson and

others did partially there was some success. It's not complete yet

but it's not like it was once. Blacks can go to the University of

Alabama. Blacks play on the football team. Blacks can go to all the

southern colleges now. But before say, supposed we would have had

presidents there at the time who would not have went that extra mile

and said dammit it to hell the law says they are entitled to go there

and to enforce this law I'm going to call out the militia. If
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necessary and I'm going to take over the national guard in Alabama and

I'm going to be in command of them. I'll send somebody, I'll send the

Attorney General there to see that ray order is enforced and those who

violate that order will go to jail. And the same thing in the labor

movement. You have to issue an order but you can let it be known that

here is my position. As long as I am president of the Local 600 this

is the way it is going to be. NOw you may defeat me at the poll but

I'm here for x-number of months, yes, but here is my position. This

is the position that we are taking. And anybody who violate against

this is violating my position as far as the leadership of the

organization is concerned. So these are the things and I must repeat

that we are not out of the woods yet. The labor movement is in a hell

of a danger right now in ray opinion. I could be wrong as hell, and I

hope I am, the labor movement is in a hell of a danger. And I hope

that it will turn around and I hope that they will be able to maintain

and to continually exist but our strength has been diminished, our

leadership has not been recognized and been respected like it was some

years ago, gains we have made we had to give them up, I don't see any

guarantee that we will be able to ever at this plant, I don't see any

guarantee we will be able to recoup what we have lost because the

papers come out everyday saying that some people who have been laid

off will never get back. So membership has been declining. They are

talking about robotics, we are talking about all these technical jobs,

got to train them. Train them for what? Well, damn job, you are

training them. Where are you going to program, you train them? you

know. They shouldn't have ever given up what they had. I don't say

that we shouldn't improve our way and technology and all this, yeah.
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Okay. But not at the expense of the worker. You don't do that. You

don't eliminate what you already have without damn sure having

assurance or you are guaranteed that you are going to get something in

return or more in return, either the same or more in return. Any

further questions?

I: Yeah, Id like to go back a little bit more to the period of the 40s,

you were talking about the strong solidarity that was among the

workers. Did workers that worked together in the plant usually live

in the same areas or how did they socialize outside the plant?

R: Oh, yeah, they had different functions by the union and then I can

give an example, Local 600, I am glad you raised that question. All

of them did not live in the same area. Take the Poles, the majority

of the Polish people lived in Hamtramack. The majority of Italians

lived on the far East side. The Blacks lived in a little section out

here called Black Bottom down here.

I: Where was that?

R: That's down across a place called Brashon, how it's an elite district

down there. All the homes have been torn down, doctors and lawyers

live there now, it was called Black Bottom. And Hastings Street up

here by the super highway and you had people who lived in the suburbs

like Dearborn, and Wyandotte, and no Blacks lived in Dearborn. No

Blacks lived in Wyandotte. But there was all kinds of socialization

going on. The Local was giving dances, Blacks and Whites dancing

together. They would give picnics, the kids were there playing

together, they would give, they would have choral ensembles, all of

them singing in the choir together, they had bands, they played

together, in the Labor Day marches all of them competed for prizes,
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and this kind of thing. Even though they weren't living in the same

neighborhood together they would visit each other and these are the

kind of social activities I think that went on that helped elevate

this brotherhood and togetherness more openly and more viable and more

determined.

I: Did you have a big showing at those social events? A lot of people

came out?

R: Oh, yes. Again I go back to Local 600. We had what we call one of

the biggest halls there you know, during the winter months. We have

all of our activities inside during the summer months, we have events

at Bel Isle. We would have them at some of the big parks outside the

city, city-owned parks, like Rouge Park during the parades after the

parades were all over guys would get together with their families, the

kids down by the river down here go to Bel! Isle, say, Local 600 is

going to have a picnic, a Labor Day picnic after the parade. The

parade was the highest big point in labor in the city of Detroit at

one time. Everybody participated in the Labor Day parade in the

streets. It was just something like the Mardi Gras in New Orleans and

every local had their own band. They would compete you know, who had

the best flying squad, who had the best band and who performed in the

parade better, you know what I mean. The precision march or just slow

march or whatever it was you know. And we all assembled down here in

a place called Cadillac square after the parade is over. That's where

most of the presidents would come Truman, Eisenhower, everybody would

come to local 600 on election year to make a speech. We would have

120,000 almost 150,000 people in this square and everybody stayed

nobody left. They put all their instruments down and sat and waited
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f o r t h e s p e a k e r t o s t a r t . A n d t h i s w a s t h e h i g h l i g h t o f l a b o r i n t h i s

town. Everybody looked forward, when the Labor Day parade was over

they s ta r ted to bu i l d ing fo r the nex t year. F loa ts , beau ty queens we

had Black beauty queens, winning Black contests here in the c i ty of

Detroit, you know what I mean, labor coming from labor, Black women

you know, nowhere in the country would you find an organizat ion

predominately Whites were sponsoring, that would select a Black woman

for a beauty queen, you know what I mean, it was unheard of. But we

had i t here. Some of the leading per formers of the stage aqn theater

cam dhere. Paul Robeson, Humphry Bogart, Dolphin Trombone (?), Kirk,

what's the guys name?

I : D o u g l a s ?

R: Douglas, Kirk Douglas, he's the guy they would come to the Local 600.

It was a good thing we had some real ...

I: How about participation in the meetings, unit meetings, did they turn

out there?

R: You don't have T^te turnout anymore because I'll give an example: In

the general council of Local 600 is the highest legislative body of

the Local 600. The meetings would start at 9:00 in the morning and on

every issue you would have people get up on the floor discussing pro

and con whether it should or whether it shouldn't be, a democratic

vote would be taken on it and that's the way it would be ruled. And

these meetings would last from 9:00 in the morning sometimes for 3:30

and 4:00 in the afternoon. Ndw you go at a General Council meeting,

the meeting starts at 11:00, 11:20 it's all over. The executive board

of the Local 600 whatever recommendation comes out nobody questions

the President, not any more, about the issues. It's just
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automatically accepted you know. The membership meetings, you

couldn't get in. We used to have to install loudspeakers outside of

the building for members who was coming to the membership to hear what

was going on inside the building. The auditorium would be packed.

Now you call a membership meeting and I don't think a membership

meeting was held in Local 600 in a hell of a long time. I don't think

so. You wouldn't get 100 people I don't think out of the membership

meetings of the local unless it was something real special. The

constitution required you have a membership meeting every month and I

don't think they had it. No, I don't think they had it. I could be

wrong, they had one and I don't know. But the biggest turnout you get

in any local now are the seniors, the retirees. Your active

membership in the plant doesn't turn out for meetings anymore. If you

go to a senior retirement meeting and it's overflowing these are the

old guys who were thrown out. They put their blood and guts in the

whole thing.

I: In the 40s the unit meetings were big. What kind of percentages do

you think they got?

R: A guy that wouldn't come to a union meeting in the 40s, he was almost

ostercized, you know, the#uys in his unit would say where in the hell

were you yesterday, you know. You weren't at the membership meeting.

It would be packed. You take just a boring meeting. Sometimes we

would say there were too many we can't get them we are going to have

department meetings. Sometimes we would meet before work, or after

work. Guys would be working the midnight shift but leave the plant

and go to a meeting in the morning before he goes home. Or sometimes

they would have it before he go in the plant, you know. But usually
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we try to have them every month during Sundays. But it's just there.

I guess I'm not going to say that the workers have lost faith. I

don't think they have. I'm going to say that the leadership in my

personal opinion is not demonstrating to the membership the type of

leadership, the type of leadership that the membership wants. And not

aggressive enough and not progressive enough. And they don't see

anything that's being accomplished.

I: Do you think that there were big differences between the ways that the

leaders of the union, and like the committees being elected in the

different building units, negotiated or fought, or that their level of

militance against the company differed from unit to unit?

R: The difference between the way they negotiated in the different units

is that what you mean?

I : Ye a h .

R : Oh , yeah , t he re was a d i f f e rence , yeah . You take r i gh t t hen any p l an t

a guy may, to give an example, a guy in the assembly plant may be

negot ia t ing on a cer ta in issue, h is negot ia t ing team say wel l we want

just for example more we want a wage increase for the people who put

the spark plugs in the engine. A guy in another uni t may be

negot ia t ing on s imi la r work he 's not pu t t ing the spark p lugs in but he

may be put t ing the p is tons in . And he may be negot ia t ing for a lesser

wage and there is no coordination, l ike i t used to be when you are

going in to negot iate everybody knew what the hel l they wanted. They

discussed th is months and months before negot ia t ion s tar ted.

Everything was bad. And that the company was refusing on then they

were re fus ing on the issue deffect ive assembly operat ion a l l the way

around the p lan t . Try to , nego t ia t ions in loca l 600 every p lan t was
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required, every chairman of that unit was required to submit to the

local union a list of demands that they wanted from the company. And

they could not negotiate on those demands unless it has an approval by

the local union. But now they have what you call unit negotiations

and we had in the bylaws that no agreement can be accepted by the

union or the company when they negotiate with these unit chairmen

until approved by the Local 600. It has to be approved by the office

of the executive board of the Local 600 before that agreement could be

made effective. They don't do that anymore.

I: Is there a difference you think between the ways that the right

wingers and the left wingers conducted their fights on the shop floor?

R: Compared to what?

I: Their struggles on the shop floor. For example, take a right wing vs.

a left or the committeeman or somebody who is fighting for a grievance

or even up to the officer stage.

R: Well, at that time when I was in the shop a right winger had to

negotiate. Now he may did some things under cover not knowing whether

we would find out, to stay elected to office he had to negotiate for

the worker. I won't say that all of them got away, did it the same.

Some people got away and I'm pretty sure some left wingers may have

d i d s o m e t h i n g s t h a t , b u t i f i t w a s e v e r d i s c o v e r e d ,

he would never be elected again. That right wing committeeman had to

be as aggressive as hell with the supervisor representing if he was a

left or a right wing committeeman representing a worker, he had to be

as aggressive as hell to see if he run that grievance on his side

representing the workers prevailed. Now he may have put on a show, he

may have got with the fireman and said look I'm going to raise holy
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hell with you but I don't think I can go anywhere. I got to make it

look good, for my election I want to stay in this ofice, you know.

And he had to do it. Not only him whether they are left wing or

right, they had to do it. Now they don't do it anymore from what I

understand. They don't file grievances like they did then, they don't

follow through on the grievance procedure like they used to do. But

every time difference of opinion would come up, and that's what the

grievance procedure is for. If they can't resolve it with the

supervisor verbally or, write in a grievance. And that's what the

conpany don't like for you to do, write grievances. They do not like

that, because once that grievance is processed and it goes through the

procedure and it goes before the arbitrator, you don't know who in the

hell is going to win, you know.

I: So you are saying that both right wing and left wing had to be

m i l i t a n t .

R: Oh, yeah, they had to be, but the right wing had them—I will not go

too far as to say the right wing did not represent them. I think they

represented them, they had to, at the time that I was in the shop if

they wanted to stay in office. Now they may not represent it as

progressive and as militant as a left winger was, but they had to make

a hell of a showing or either that, or they just didn't stay in

o f fi c e .

I: Do you think there would be a difference in the types of grievances

that they would pursue? say a type that a right winger would be likely

to pursue vs. the left winger? For example, would the right winger be

more likely to pursue grievances like seniority or maybe wages or
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someth ing l i ke tha t ve rsus d isc ip l ine o r more tough g r ievances , l i ke

t h a t ?

R: Yeah . My answer to you i s the same, w i l l be the same. I t a l l depends

o n t h a t t i m i n g . I f y o u a r e t a l k i n g a b o u t t h e t i m e .

I : Ye a h . 4 0 s a n d 5 0 s .

R: Yeah, they would do it. Again it could be did in many ways. A right

winger at that itme could represent a person on the floor once that

grievance was filed he would raise hell on the floor. Now, once that

grievance was filed, now when that grievance gets to the bargainng

committee the next stage up, that right winger had to come in and say

here is what has happened and give all the details on it. The guy is

going to ask him is Judy is this all the information you got on Judy

in her defense, and he say yeah, well they say well, I want you to go

out and get some more. I want you to get some people who are standing

around, I want you to get the names of the people who are standing

around. Get their version of what happened, I want you to come back

in here, I don't want you to bring anybody in here who is going to be

against Judy. I want you to bring someone in here who is going to be

on Judy's side, who is going to be a witness and I can put their name

down and I can go out and interview them and they are going to give a

favorable statement in favor of Judy. Now once he's told that and if

he didn't do it and that grievance had to go out and the word got back

that there was a witness for Judy and the Committeeman didn't pursue

that, didn't make any effort to get that in a grievance so it could be

looked at when it gets to the arbitrator, that guy just didn't get

elected. And I would say compared to what it was in the 40s and the

50s when a right wing commiteeman vs. a left wing commiteeman, I think
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both of them tried to do what was right. I think the left wing

pursued it more aggressively and more diligently and with more extent

than the right wing guy did. And he would not take any kind of answer

from the supervisor that was not in favor of the person they were

representing. I don't think the right wing pursued it as aggressively

as the left wing committeeman would. And that was a difference in the

political set up at Local 600. But a right wing commiteeman in 1940

and 1950 and the early 60s would be considered a left wing

committeeman today. He would.

I: So you had a building, say a building can be considered right wing, do

you look at the president or do you look at the basic officers or the

elect? Would the committeemen follow line usually if the right wing

slate won in a certain unit, say transportation unit? Say they won

election for all of the officers, would the committeemen also tend to

be right wing?

R: No. Not all of them. Some of them would fight to the very end and

some of them would make a deal and stay in office. They would say

well, I'm going along with the president of transportation unit -and

Ioca 600 have been looked upon over the years as a right wing unit.

We had a couple of left-wing guys there but sometimes a guy would go

down to defeat, a left winger would. A left wing committeeman who was

inja predominantly right-wing led building. Before he would give up he

would go down and get defeated. Before he would side and go along

with a right wing president. And that's the, your record shows that

l ike t ransportat ion in a bui ld ing, l ike the ro l l ing mi l l , the steel

mill, that was a predominantly right wing. We had left wingers in

there.
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I: Why do you think the rolling mill as so right wing?

R: Well, it was a building where number one, it was predominantly White,

overwhelmingly White. That's where the most money was made. Those

guys used to make 40- to 50,000 a year in the rolling mill and they

still make good money there. And that was one of the buildings we

considered kind of a reactionary, you got an island of democracy here

with a little citadel of reactionary sitting over there in the Rolling

Mill and the transportation unit and in answer to your question

because number one, it was predominantly White; number two, the

leadership of the building was a right winger and as I indicated

before the membership has a tendency to go along with what their

leadership says. But that didn't mean that all of them got along. We

had some real progressive and real aggressive leaders in the Rolling

Mill, took their licks. Some were defeated, some still were able to

hang on. And when you get people in an outfit like that where big

money is being made, they don't want to lose that money. They don't

want to be friendly, they use the race issue and that's it. Look,

give you an example, say Joe Blow is the President of this building.

He don't want any of those niggers coming in here. If you get them in

here they are going to get your job, man. Some of them guys form the

foundry got 15, 20 years seniority. They are going to bring their

seniority in here. And some of the guys wouldn't accept that. They

said, look, I don't give a goddam who they bring in, if they got the

seniority they are entitled to it. That's what we fought for, to get

recognition of our seniority. They would have White guys speaking up

for it. They would say I don't give a goddam if I got to go because

of ray low seniority, then I'll go, but I don't want to be B.Sed. I
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don't want to be B.Sed out of here. As long as the guy got the

sen io r i t y and he t akes my j ob I 'm w i l l i ng t o accep t t ha t . And t ha t ' s

the way it was put you know and that's the way we agreed upon when we

were organiz ing. But some people won' t accept that . Some people—

(To be Continued?)
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I: But they were lef t wing?

R: They were left wing.

I: Why do you think they were left wing?

R: With the leadership. That's another example. You take a guy like

Dorosh, you take a guy like John Orr, you take a guy like Virgil
ft

Lacey, you take a guy like Vince Branada, Mike7Rabor, all these were

White. And theyinsisted that Blacks be on their slate when they ran.

Some of them just put down. They were White, skilled trades was not

open to Blacks. I shouldn't say wholesale, they had a few but the

going was I would say 99 percent White. But these guys insisted and

these were the old time organizers and Local 600, Dorosh and these

guys that I named, they insisted that Blacks run on their slate, they

insisted that Blacks be part of the general operation of the Tool and

Die unit. They insisted that Blacks be elected to delegates to the

convention. It wasn't enough. Blacks in there elected Blacks, but

the Whites would vote for them and defeat other Whites who were

running against them. And this goes back to what I said again, it all

depends on the position that the leadership takes. And if the

leadership resorts to, say hell no we don't want them the membership

has a tendency to follow this line. And I won't say all of them, but

that's overwhelmingly they will do it.

I: Why do you think in the Rolling Mill, you said there was a few

progressives and of course they had a progressive slate running

against the right, in the Roll ing Mil l?



R: In the Ro l l ing Mi l l , yeah.

I: Why did the progressive keep on losing in the Rolling Mill?

R : I n R o l l i n g M i l l s ?

I : Y e s .

R: Because they changed leadership. Number one in Rolling Mill you had a

guy there one tme by the name of Blaich. Blaich was a right winger.

But Dorosh, Lacey, John Orr and all these guys were riding herd all

the time on them, Mike Rabor you know. And he couldn't get away with

the things that the right winger usually wanted to put forward as far

as the policy was concerned, they would challenge him on it, at Board

meetings, membership meetings, general council meetings and discuss it

on the floor but overwhelmingly as time went on and again you go back

to the McCarthy era they began to use the issue of communism. Then

the membership out off fear began to go along with the right wing

leadership in the Rolling Mill and it stayed that way. Stil l that way

today. The Rolling Mill is a predominantly right wing building today.

And that's something that we wasn't able to overcome as far as the

right wing. As I say, the Tool and Die and Rolling Mill, that's where

t h e m o s t m o n e y i s m a d e . To o l a n d D i e a n d t h e R o l l i n g

Mill and if the membership is prepared to understand certain things

about membership in the organization which all of them belong to they

are susceptible to accept the leadership's version of what's going on

of how he wanted it to be. That's why you had such going on in the

Rolling Mill even today.

I: What were some of the lower paid buildings? The Production Foundry,

was that one of the ones low on the wage scale?



R: Yeah I would say that. But where you say a lower paid I would say

they were lower paid in the sense of the conditions that teh guys had

to work under. The foundry workers worked under some real hazardous,

backbreaking, death, I would say conditions. Naturally, their wages

was not as high as those were in the Tool and Die or the Rolling Mill,

or in some cases in the other plants. But where they could find a

similarity of operation or classification they would find aseembly in

the foundry was getting a dime or a nickle less than assemblymen in

the assembly plant or in the engine plant they would write a grievance

and they would win. The contract called for hte classification or

assemblyman classification should be paid the same rate, but then you

have to have aggressive committeemen. They, you take in the foundry

and most of the leadership in the foundry were Black. They had some

Whites, but most of the leadership in the foundry was Black. Yu take

a guy like Shelton Tappes. Shelton Tappes fought like hell. And all

these guys who came along after Shelton left, and this was a big issue

in Local 600. We die, the death rate in the foundry is six tmes

greater than that in the other buildings. Ford Motor Company right

today if a guy says well I got tfilocosis, they'll offer him $20,000 we

will give him $20,00 if you don't take us to court. Sign the paper

you got your $20,000. You don't need a lawyer they will give you

trade. They admit to, but if a person works in a foundry from 1 to 3

years he has cilbcosis. And they would be willing to make an out-of-

court settlement with you right away, Ford Motor Company would. But

the Local say well we got a legal department and we got our lawyers

i n . T h a t w a s n b o t h e r p h a s e . W e u s e d t o l a w y e r s . T h e

committeemen took care of that. Well the lawyers want a piece of the



pie. Not only do they want a piece of that worker's pie, they want

something from the Local treasury. They got all kind of, well you

would be surprised, you got all kind of I would say so-called experts

who moved in.

I: What were some of the other buildings that had bad conditions besides

the production foundry?

R: Well, you had the foundry, some places in the Rolling Mill that they

gradually el iminated al l in the Roll ing Mil l . The Roll ing Mil l being

predominant White, the foundry being preominantly Black they give less

than a damn about Blacks than they did about Whites. After a certain,

one particular guy and the foundry became president then they built

they new foundry out here at Woodhaven. Suppose to be the most modern

foundry in the world. The foundry operated down about three or four

years and they closed it down. There is'foundry now. It 's sitt ing

out there, big place. There is no foundry. You said other buildings.

Oh well. I don't know. The other buildings were predominantly White

so you know foundry was the only building out there that it was

predominantly Black at the time. Some of the other buildings had

become predominantly Black now. You got the Black unit presidents,

the executive board is more heavily populated by Blacks down there.

I: Would you say that the production foundry was predominantly left wing

during the 40s and 50s?

R: Oh yes. Oh defini te ly. Oh yeah.

I: Can you tell me about some of the politics, I have a list of the

different units for back in the 40s • • •

R : A l i s t o f d i f f e ren t wha t?

I : The uni ts that were—



R : U n i t s ?

I : C a n y o u t e l l m e a b o u t t h e p o l i t i c s , i s t h e r e a n y t h i n g s p e c i a l t h a t

comes to mind about them l ike the a i rcraf t un i t , dur ing the war they

had the un i t t ha t made a i r c ra f t , i s t he re any th ing?

R : Yeah . We l l t he a i r c ra f t un i t was a un i t t ha t mos t o f t he wo rk was

govenrment work. Prat t and WHi tney motors were bu i l t there. The

aircraf t was receiv ing some of the highest wages, long working hours

you can work as long as you want to. Nobody can refuse it. Some guys

used to just , would have thei r wives br ing thei r lunch out and meet

them at the gate and go on back in and just work around the clock.

Some guys would sleep there. Sometime you go home and stay a day, a

day and a half and come back and work in the, and that's the way the

a i rc ra f t opera ted. Now the o ther par t o f your quest ion was what?

I : W h a t w e r e t h e p o l i t i c s t h e r e ?

R : T h e p o l i t i c s ? Yo u h a d a c o m b i n a t i o n o f p o l i t i c s i n t h e a i r c r a f t . Yo u

had some le f t w ing po l i t ics , and you had some r ight w ing po l i t ics .

You had guys in there who, and the e lec t ions in the a i rc ra f t a t tha t

t ime was a lmost in ba lance. I f a r igh t w inger wou ld w in as pres ident

he had to confront a predominant ly or a lmost predominant ly le f t wing

execu t i ve boa rd . I f t he p res i den t w as a p rog ress i ve o r l e f t w i nge r,

i t w a s a l m o s t w h a t y o u c a l l t e e t e r t o t t e r i n t h e a i r c r a f t . I t w a s

never a so l i d l e f t w ing bas t ion , i t was never a so l i d r i gh t w ing

bas t ion . I t was a lways t ipp ing the sca les one way o r the o ther.

I : W e r e t h e w o r k e r s h i g h l y s k i l l e d ?

R : N o t n e c e s s a r i l y s o . M o s t o f t h e m w h o w e n t i n t o t h e a i r c r a f t b u i l d i n g

at the t ime came from other bui ldings some were hired out of the



streets and they were assemblers that's all. They were assembling

planes and I don't think it was anything that was highly skilled.

I: Why do you think they got higher wages, was that just because there

was a war on?

R: All of it was war material they were making there and most of these, a

lot of it was work that had been let by the government and the

government had no, during the war, I'll give you an exmaple, the Ford

Motor Company was getting this money from the government and hell they

worked, the government was paying, the Ford Motor Company couldn't

give a damn. All they wanted to do is we kept this contract for x-

billions of dollars, we are going to produce so many planes for you.

You are giving us this money to do it, you know. And that's what the

Ford Motor Company did. They weren't paying, they weren't losing

anything. That money was coming from the government. And the wages

were tops. I think it came about because when you need a product you

are willing to pay for that product, you know especially when it's

coming out of the taxpayers' money. The government didn't give a damn

how much they raised the wages, you know. But they did put a freeze

on except in some cases where it was necessary to raise them.

I: Maybe since that was, I just thought of this, since it was a new

production that the wages were determined before the War Labor Board

came in.

R: Yeah, well before the War Labor Board came in. That's right, you are

absolutely r ight there.

I: Okay. What about the Jobbing Foundry.

R: The Jobbing Foundry was once upon a time the Jobbing Foundry all of it

which was one. Shelton Tappes was the president. Shelton Tappes was



the president 17,000 people between the Foundry and the Jobbing

Foundry and the coke ovens. All of that came under one jurisdiction.

Shelton was the most mightiest (?) guy out there. As far as each

building was designated so many representatives to the general

council. So many to a convention, based on the population to that

building. Some of the bright chairmen got jealous as hell and Shelton

Tappes was the president of 17,000 people and they had to cut it up.

They made a motion and there was a big fight on the board about it.

but surely democracy was, the prevailing vote was that, they voted

that each one of these units should have autonomous.

I: When did they vote that?

R: When? This was 1946, I think, 47 or 46, 45. 45, yeah. 1945 or 46

either 46 or 45.

I : So were the foundries pretty similar after that?

R: Yeah i t was s imi lar work. Al l d i r ty hot , greasy.

I : S a m e p o i t i c a l ?

R: Same thing.

I: So it came from, originaly there were all the foundries together, then

it broke up into Production, Jobbing and what else?

R: Coke ovens.

I: Is that Open Hearth?

R: Yeah. Open Hearth? Yeah. I see you have been getting sane good

information. Dorosh gave you all of this?

I: Well I have been looking at the archives. You know you get some here

and there.

R: Oh yeah, well the place is

I: How about the Motor and Engine plant.
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R: Wel l , the Motor and Engine p lant i t was predominant ly Whi te but you

had some good left wing leadership there. You had Boatin, you had

Bil l cooper and who else did you have there at the Motor bui lding?

But the he igh t o f the leadersh ip the he igh t o f the ac t i v i t y the re was

Boat in and B i l l Cooper. And S te l la to was in the Moto r bu i ld ing fo r

a w h i l e . B e f o r e h e w e n t o n t h e i n t e r n a t i o n a l s t a f f . T h e M o t o r

bui lding was always looked upon as a real progressive and lef t wing

bu i ld ing . You had r igh t w ingers in the re . And as t ime wen t on aga in

I must te l l you that the s t rugg le got to a po in t where i t was in doubt

about wit was going to win because of Kte histeria that had been

created. One year i t would be a le f t w ing pres ident , we used to ho ld

elect ions by the way every year so a guy get started, again i t was

e lec t i on t ime . So when he go t e lec ted tha t fi rs t day he was ins ta l l ed

he s ta r ted h i s po l i t i c s a l l ove r aga in , you know. Bu t t he Mo to r

bui ld ing under the leadership of Paul and Gal lo, Ed Lock was in there

once upon a time, Harold Robinson Black guy, Ray Sull was a Black guy

and they were looked upon as a left wing building. But we had some

right wingers got elected in the 50s late 40s and the 50s and the 60s

a l s o .

I : Wha t abou t t he Ma in tenance bu i l d i ng?

R: Main tenance that was another mix ture . You had a guy, Ar t Speed, N ick

Maconov i t ch , t hey we re a l l l e f t w inge rs . A r t Speed was defin i t e l y a

left winger but he later on he began to get more of a middle of the

roader to a certain degree and Nick Maconovitch always l ined up with

us . Bu t he , po l i t i c s as usua l some t imes on d i f f e ren t i ssues , he

wou ld , wha t we used to ca l l , dese r t sh ip . Bu t i t had a h i s to ry I

wou ld say i t was not a h is to ry o f a lways a s t r i c t l y le f t w ing because



they had r ight wing people that got e lected there and but there were

always lef t wingers who was in the lower echelon of the leadership

such as d is t r ic t commit teeman, bargain ing commit teeman, execut ive

board members who at meetings would challenge and raise hell becuase

no one as I i nd ica ted be fo re in these par t i cu la r t ypes o f bu i ld ings

had no assurance tha t he had tha t t i t l e fo rever. He had to s t rugg le

t o h o l d t h a t t i t l e .

I : Wa s t h a t j u s t a b a s i c a l l y m i x e d u n i t i n t e r m s o f s k i l l l e v e l s a b o u t

the same as the other units?

R : The ma in tenance?

I : Y e a h .

R : Yeah . Mos t peop le who worked ou t o f t he re were e lec t r i c i ans ,

p l u m b e r s , m i l l w r i g h t s , t h i n g s l i k e t h a t .

I : O h t h e y w e r e s k i l l e d ?

R: Yeah they we re sk i l l ed t r adesmen . A l l o f t hem. Mos t o f t hem were

sk i l l ed t radesmen .

I : D id they a lso have h igher wages than the average?

R: Yeah they were a long, a l igned wi th the Tool and d ie . They had some

high wages, yeah.

I : T h e y w e r e o n e u n i t t h a t d i d n ' t h a v e a p h y s i c a l b u i l d i n g , r i g h t , t h a t

they were pretty much spread over.

R : T h a t ' s r i g h t t h e y w e r e s p r e a d a l l o v e r t h e p l a n t . T h e y s t i l l a r e t o a

ce r ta i n deg ree . Yeah they go t a bu i l d i ng now bu t i t ' s sp read a l l

o v e r. J u s t l i k e To o l a n d D i e , t h e y g o t a c e n t r a l l y l o c a t e d b u i l d i n g

but you may have a tool and die maker over in the engine plant say for

instance the maintenance you have plumbers and you have electr icians

and you have mi l lwr ights, you have machine repair.
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I : Now a re those the too l and d ie makers ins ide o the r bu i l d ings a l so

members of the tool and die unit?

R: Yeah, they are members of the main Tool and Die un i t . They vote in

a l l ma in e lec t i ons o f t he Too l and D ie bu i l d i ng yea r. They can ' t vo te

i n any o the r un i t .

I : How does the communicat ions work between guys that are spread out al l

over?

R : O h i t w o r k s — t e l e p h o n e s a n d d u r i n g e l e c t i o n s t h e y h a d t o a l l t h e i r

meetings they go to their own meeting say a Tool and Die meeting is

cal led, those that are not working on that date they come to the

regular meet ings. Dec is ions are made there and af ter the meet ing is

over, dur ing the work day they a re back in the i r respec t i ve bu i ld ing .

Bu t commun ica t ion you say, we l l i f a guy, Judy i s d is t r i c t

committeeman, and you have another building other than a Tool and Die

you may represent Tool and Die workers in the engine plant, you may

work and represent Tool and Die workers over in the Assembly plant.

And you go, you got your car or you drive from one plant to another,

around the complex out there, and you share your office with that same

bu i l d i ng say i f i t ' s an eng ine p lan t , t ha t ' s whe re the eng ines a re

made that Tool and Die committeeman go up in that committee room up

there i f he go t a ca l l f rom another one o f h is cons t i tuen ts in another

bui ld ing, why he goes over there and find out what the hel l the

t r o u b l e i s .

I : Okay wha t abou t t he M isce l l aneous un i t ?

R : Tha t was a bu i l d i ng t ha t a l so was a sw ing bu i l d i ng . I t was no t

p redominan t l y l e f t , i t was no t p redominan t l y r i gh t . We had a

combination and one of the presidents that I remember, there was a guy
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named Joe Berry, he's not there anymore. Joe is ret ired and he swung

between a left winger and a r ight winger but he was a r ight winger but

on some issues he would go along with the left wing. But he was loyal

to Wal te r Reuther, he espoused most o f the r igh t w ing po l ic ies . But

on some issues he would go along with the left wing. There were guys

who chal lenged h im, le f t wingers. There were guys a long the

bargaining committee who were left wing, there were guys in the

d is t r i c t commi t tee who were le f t w ing . And he d idn ' t a lways ge t h i s

way of doing things. That shows you how as I indicated to you before

how the membership responded to the leadership, they didn' t accept in

some cases to ta l ly a r ight w ing pres ident . The major i ty may have

voted fo r h im bu t they d idn ' t accept a l l o f h is , we l l you say I want

my slate elected with me you run a slate of guys and he may get

elected and some of h is guys on the s late would get e lected, lef t

wingers may get elected on there too. Sometimes he had to confront a

m a j o r i t y o f a l e f t w i n g e x e c u t i v e b o a r d . A n d t h a t d i d n ' t h e l p h i m

worth a damn. He may have been the president but when the decisions

are made on the board, he had to carry out that decis ion. That board

predominantly left wing and voted with x number of people should go to

th i s conven t i on o r t o t h i s con fe rence o r t ha t t h i s f e l l ow i s go ing on

record suppor t ing for example the Russian delegat ion to the UN that 's

the way i t wen t . He may oppose i t , he ra i sed a l l t he he l l abou t i t ,

but the board went on record, the major i ty of the voters went and

vo ted aga ins t t he p res iden t .

I : How of ten d id those execut ive boards meet , the ones that were

represen t ing the un i t s on ly, d id they meet a l l t he t ime , how o f ten .

R: How often did they meet, once a month.
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I : Once a mon th?

R: Once a month . They are requ i red under cons t i tu t ion and the by laws o f

the Local 600 to meet.

I : T h a t w a s b e s i d e t h e u n i t m e e t i n g ?

R : T h a t ' s r i g h t , y e a h . S o m e t i m e s t h e u n i t , t h e b o a r d w o u l d m e e t j u s t

before the membership meeting. Sometimes they would meet three or

four days before. I t a l l depends on the issues coming up.

I : Yo u m e n t i o n e d e a r l i e r t h a t Tr a n s p o r t a t i o n w a s b a s i c a l l y r i g h t , t h o s e

guys were, where was i t in the ear ly 50s, they had that controversy

ove r whe the r to a ffi l i a te w i th D is t r i c t 50 o f t he UMW, the

Tr a n s p o r t a t i o n u n i t .

R : Oh yeah . Tha t was a b ig figh t t ha t wen t on a t t he Transpo r ta t i on t o

a f fi l i a t e w i t h D i s t r i c t 5 0 .

I : Yeah wha t go t t ha t s ta r ted? Were they upse t w i th the Loca l as a

whole?

R : Ye a h . I t w a s a p r e d o m i n a n t l y r i g h t w i n g b u i l d i n g . A n d a t t h a t t i m e

Stellato had broke with Reuther and there was a move to go on the, it

wouldn ' t have got ten any p lace. I don ' t th ink even Reuther would have

supported that at the t ime because you don't give up a unit where you

got membership dues coming to your t reasury you know. But i t d idn ' t

l a s t l o n g . T h e y t r i e d . B u t y o u h a d d i f f e r e n t l e a d e r s h i p t h e r e a n d

some people said let 's get the hell out of Local 600 we want to go to

D i s t r i c t 5 0 .

I : Wha t we re the g roups i n t he re t ha t we re l ead ing the Transpo r ta t i on

u n i t ?

R : I t w a s n ' t t h e g r o u p i t w a s s o m e i n d i v i d u a l s .

I : I t w a s n ' t A C T U S ?
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R: No. That was a suspicion and there was even accusations that ACTU was

a p a r t o f i t . B u t I c o u l d n e v e r s e e t h e p r o o f o f i t . T h e r e w e r e

ind i v i dua l s who wan ted to l eave Loca l 600 , go to D i s t r i c t 50 . A l l

k ind of movements were going on in Local 600 by individuals. Of

course you got to understand in Local 600 you had ever^ element of

society in a human being in there. You had al l k ind of people who

were espous ing d i f ferent po l i t i ca l formulas and doct r ines and dogmas

and whatever you want to ca l l i t . But tha t was on an ind iv idua l

basis. But the dominant factor there was a Communist and the

progress ives and the r igh t w ing and the l i be ra ls so ca l led . And those

who cou ld no t ge t t he i r v i ewpo in t ac ross i nd i v i dua l l y, t hey wou ld t r y

to get l ined up with someone who would l isten to their cause or be

part of espousing what they wanted or accepted rahter what they wanted

to get ou t o f i t . But ac tua l ly 600 was made up s t r i c t down the l ine

o f l e f t v s . r i g h t .

I : O k a y t h e n e x t p l a n t i s t h e g l a s s .

R : G l a s s ? We l l , a g a i n t h e r e y o u h a d a c o m b i n a t i o n o f l e f t a n d r i g h t .

You had Andry Robinson there you had what's that guy's name. Leo, Leo

Ausay I think his name was.

I : O r s a g e .

R: Leo Orsage yeah. Now Leo Orsage was s t r i c t l y a le f t -w inger bu t he ,

pressure and some things made him, he had a tendency at times when the

hea t go t ho t t o k ind o f more l i be ra l i ze h i s s tand on d i f f e ren t i ssues

and whatnot. He had got elected but a r ight winger came along and

defeated him and then exchanged hands over the year you know. We used

to have e lect ions every year you got to unders tand. And then i t went

to 2 years and then i t went to three years you know. But here la te ly
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I don' t know what the hel l they have now. But before a guy could get

deeply entrenched good, he had to, the election was on him again.

Some say well I don't have time enough to serve my membership before I

have to s tar t po l i t ic ing, mot ion was made to have e lect ions every two

years . A b i t t e r figh t took pa lce ove r i t . Some wan ted and some

d idn ' t . Bu t one th ing in Loca l 600 i t was a democra t i c un ion , a

democrat ic Local. Once a decision is made you maynot l ike the

decis ion and you ra ise hel l about i t on the board and you ra ise hel l

about i t in the membersh ip meet ing, you ra ise he l l about i t in the

general counci l meet ing and i t 's too bad that you couldn' t have come

along in those days i f you want to hear some real orators and i f you

w a n t e d t o h e a r w e l l , . T h i s m a k e s W i l l i a m J a m e s B r y a n t

and some of those other guys long years ago look bad. You could get

guys and they knew what the he l l they were ta lk ing about . I t wasn ' t

j us t a rebe l - rouser (? ) say ing th ings incoheren t l y and d idn ' t know what

he was saying. These guys knew what they were saying.

I : W h e r e d i d t h e s e g u y s g e t a l l t h e s k i l l s t o g e t o u t t h e r e —

R : W h e r e d i d t h e y g e t t h e s k i l l ?

I : Ye s t o t a l k t o p e o p l e .

R : T h a t ' s a g o o d q u e s t i o n . T h e y g o t t h e i r s k i l l s b y b e i n g a n i n d i v i d u a l

wo was suppressed by the Company, and they knew what happened to them.

And they knew how they had been affected and no one could express it

no better than they could. And they made a point once the union was

organized they made a point of knowing every word—we had guys when

our fi r s t con t rac t was s igned i t was abou t t ha t t h i ck . Now ou r

cont ract , you can ' t get i t in one damn book. You have to have a l l

kind of, a book on wages, a book on benefits, a book on this, and a
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book on vacat ions and a l l o f tha t . But tha t book had in there the

language was so precise and the understanding was so clear that most

guys, i f you got on a vacat ion th is one, ar t ic le so and so chapter so

and so verse so and so said the vacat ion per iod star ts at th is t ime

and so on and so and so. That 's how art iculate and that 's how versed

they were on the issues confront ing them. And the quest ion you asked

I must say agian they got it because they had been kicked in the rump.

They had been looked upon as not even being humans by the company and

they had been treated as not being humans. And those guys were

detemr ined, I 'm go ing to be f rank inc lud ing me. I was determined that

I was going to know every goddamn thing about whatever the union was

about. And I wanted to know every damn thing I could about what we

had agreed to. And not only me there were guys who had been elected

to posit ions when they go on the floor they knew what the worker would

ask them or certain th ings about the contract yeah, art ic le so and so,

section so and so.

End Tape 3, Side A
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David Moore
Tape 3, Side B
Depression '30s

R: The ded ica t i on , t he unders tand ing the honor and the de te rm ina t ion a l l

a par t o f these representat ives to do a good job. They were

dedicated. They were just , i t was something they had never had

before. They were determined they was going to make the best out of

i t . They were determined they were going to be honest wi th the i r

cons t i t uen ts . And they were , mos t o f them. I don ' t ca re wha t g roup

you get , you are going to find some rot ten apples. But in most cases

the representa toves out a t Loca l 600 were bas ica l ly honest w i th the i r

const i tuents because they had to be as I ind icated before they wasn' t .

In the o ld days you d idn ' t las t but one term. And in fact you were

subject to recal l . They caught a guy or the rumor got around that a

guy and they had the goods on him. They would recall you by signing a

petit ion and a person had to be a good representative. Now some guys

got e lected and they weren' t and they didn' t last but one term and

they were gone and forgotten. And for a worker to let you as a

representative see you smil ing and a foreman got his arms around you

that was the k iss of death. You couldn ' t when you confronted a

foreman you couldn't show any smile on your face. The best thing you

cou ld do i f he s tar ted to exp la in to you or someth ing l i ke tha t , you

could just stand there and look at h im and say wel l look I want th is

d id , unders tand Fred . I don ' t wan t any more o f th i s ,you har rass ing

her or him. Now i f I have to come back in this department goddamit

your p roduc t ion s tops . Then they ins t i tu ted and tha t wou ld happen.

The whole department would stop. Management wanted to know at that
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time why that foreman wasn't getting that production out and

especially at the time when production was needed so bad, and they

would tell him, if you can't get along with the guys down there,

goddamit we are going to get a guy who can. This was management

saying this,some of these foreman would want, Ford Motor Company you

would think, not only Ford all of them, they didn't give a damn about

the work. All he wants is the production. Whatever it takes to get

it Judy, you are the supervisor in this department. We want x-number

of pieces of produciton coming off those machines every hour and at

the end of the shift we want this many in. Now you are the supervisor

and you got to give a reason why you don't get it out. Now some

supervisors was real slick. They would, look, Judy this machine calls

for you to get 300 pieces out of it in an hour. Now if you run your

production and get 400 pieces within the hour goof off. I'll come

down and take production count. That's a feather in his cap. Pepole

would do this. We had to go to guys and tell them you screw it up.

You don't do this you know that foreman is going to use that against

you. When that time study guy came around to time study your job,

they are going to increase that production instead of getting 300 they

are going to require you to get 350 or 400 you know. Then some

foremen really knew how to get the production. Some of them tried to

use their own system and whatnot and that's when all this difficulty

arrived. But in the main committeemen and the workers had something

going together. They were more closely knit. They understood each

other. A committeeman would tell a supervisor if you want your

production if you want some peace and harmony in this department, you

better get off that kick you are on or I'll be the one to push the
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button and stop your department. And you won't be able to penalize

anybody. And the company got pretty well behind that, what they did,

they got an agreement with the negotiators that only authorized

strikes would be conducted and that anyone who participates or

instigate an unauthorized strike can be discharged well they found

ways of getting around that also. Union guys it didn't affect them,

they walked out.

I: How did they get around that the no-strike clause in the contract?

R: How did they get around it?

I : Y e a h .

R: Many ways. I' l l tell you right now. There were all kinds of ways a

machine can be taken advantage of. Years ago when we had it, anybody

can short-circuit a machine, the electrical wires. Anybody can cause

a machine not to cut the stock properly. The job setter, you got

classifications who, say you are totally responsible for keeping the

machine your classification as a job setter. That, that lathe is your

sole responsibility, operator don't have a damn thing to do but

operate it. You the one that keep it in operation. You are getting

paid for that. You can go read your books as long as that machine is

running you get your pay. You go to the telephone booth, you can goof

off as long as that machine is running you are producing that stock

properly. Now the operator will be running it. And if the foreman

has gotten to a point where he is giving guys a hard time, the job

setter and the operators, all those machines where they are available,

okay, tell you what that stock is supposed to cut, that machine is

supposed to cut that stock 45 percent depth. Now it may go deeper

than that, that mean that stock is scrapped^it's putting out scrap.
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There are many things they could do. They have al l k inds of ways of

gett ing back. And these were some of the th ings that the guys used.

I : How d id fo reman 's un ion tha t was organ ized fo r a coup le o f years in

the 40s change that re la t ionsh ip?

R: They s ta r ted to o rgan ize and they wasn ' t together. The company used

the old divide and conquer rule. And they buy some and some of the

foremen kept working while others were out and that was an unheard of

thing among union pepole you know what I mean, some foremen kept

work ing wh i le the o thers were ou t on s t r i ke . And tha t k ind o f

s i tua t ion you a re no t go ing to w in . So they ous ted i t , i t was s imp le

a s t h a t .

I : S o t h e y w e r e n ' t v e r y u n i o n m i n d e d .

R : N o . We l l , t h e y w e r e t o a c e r t a i n e x t e n t . Yo u s t i l l h a d t h o s e f o r e m e n

there at that t ime when they t r ied to organize who was loyal to the

company. I t ' s been that way s ince day one. They d idn ' t know anyth ing

else except the company and given that i t 's a hard way to go. Some of

these guys who had gotten to be supervisors say what the hell we are

not going to get anyplace unless we organize a union just l ike the

workers d id . And some of them went out and t r ied to organize. But

sane of them never did get back. They got fired and never did get

back .

I : Okay l e t ' s see wha t abou t t he P ress S tee l un i t ?

R : W e l l , t h a t w a s a s t r o n g l e f t w i n g s t r o n g h o l d f o r a w h i l e . A n d t h e n i t

began during the hyster ia stage of McCarthyism era that began to

c h a n g e , f r o m l e f t t o r i g h t .

I : I n t h e 5 0 s o r l a t e 4 0 s ?
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R : D u r i n g t h e l a t e 4 0 s a n d e a r l y 5 0 s . B u t p r i o r t o t h a t i t w a s s t r i c t l y

lef t wing bui ld ing. You had your Lee Ramano's, you had your Archie

Accaicca's you had Willy Washington, you had Art McPhaul you know he

was over there. But as the hyster ia began to come i t was t ipsy turvy.

Sonet imes you got e lected, somet imes you d idn ' t . I t was not a

defin i te I wou ld say fo regone conc lus ion tha t the le f t was go ing to

cont ro l o r the r igh t was go ing to cont ro l . We had a combinat ion o f

b o t h .

I : H o w a b o u t t h e B b u i l d i n g ?

R: We l l t he B bu i l d ing tha t ' s t he assemb ly p lan t , and tha t was a

p r e d o m i n a n t l y l e f t w i n g b u i l d i n g f o r a w h i l e . B u t i t a l s o b e g a n t o

h a v e a s w i n g a t t i t u d e t o w a r d i t . A l l o f t h e s e b u i l d i n g s w i t h t h e

excep t i on o f Transpo r ta t i on , t he Ro l l i ng M i l l and w i th t he excep t i on

of Main tenance f rom t ime to t ime. They were predominant ly le f t fo r

awhile. But as time went on they began to swing one way or the other

there was never a definite way of saying that there was going to be

c o n t i n u a l l y c o n t r o l l e d b y l e f t w i n g o r r i g h t w i n g .
p.

I : S o y u a r e s a y i n g —

R: The who le t h i ng I ' l l t e l l you w i t hu t go ing i t em by i t em on t he who le

situation and Local 600 began to become an imbalanced thing when the

McCar thy pe r iod s ta r ted . Even back i n ' 47 , ' 48 , ' 49

But they always had an assemblance of lef t wing individuals there who

s tuck to the i r guns and wou ld run fo r o ffice and ge t e lec ted . The

r igh t wou ld be cha l lenged or v ice versa. The le f t wou ld be cha l lenged

by the r igh t w ing. I t was never a fo regone conc lus ion o f any

ind iv idua l o r any group. In some par ts o f Loca l 600 i t was go ing to

come out o f e lect ion when the complete le f t wing or r ight wing s la te.
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I : So there was no, even though you sa id there are three that were

bas ica l ly r igh t w ing the whole way through, there is none that s tayed

le f t w ing a l l the way through?

R : N o . N o t a l l t h e w a y t h r o u g h .

I : O k a y t h e n e x t q u e s t i o n I ' m g o i n g t o a s k i s k i n d o f d i f f e r e n t . I t ' s

about the type of appeals to the workers that the left wing would make

i n t e r m s o f l i k e p o l i t i c s a n d s o l i d a r i t y, c l a s s c o n s c i o u s n e s s a n d t h i s

k ind of th ing. Were those k ind of issues ta lked about on the shop

fl o o r ?

R: Oh yeah, oh yeah. On the shpo floor, around the machines, dur ing the

lunch hour breaks, guys used to come down I ' l l give an example. The

guy McPhaul got fired for ta lk ing in the lunchroom dur ing lunch break

about the rights of workers and what you had to do and those things.

The appea l as you pu t i t , was made about so l idar i t y, s t i ckers s t i ck ing

together, what your r ights are, these are the th ings we got agreement

on. Don't you let nobody take them away from you. I f you have any

doubt about i t you think you're wrong you ask that foreman to get you

a r e p r e s e n t a t i v e . H e i s o b l i g a t e d t o d o , w h i c h t h e y w e r e . I f I ' m n o t

i n t ha t depa r tmen t i f you r fie l d r ep . i s no t i n t ha t depa r tmen t , y$o

tel l that foreman you want a union representat ive and have him cal l

the office and somebody will come down and explain to you what you are

ent i t led to . But never le t nobody g ive you anyth ing tha t you have any

doubt about . You have a r ight and they would ta lk about the contract

dur ing lunch hour they wou ld ta lk about the d i f fe ren t i ssues they

would go up in the lunchrooms. They would have debates in the

lunchroom about Taf t -Har t ly. They would have debates in the lunchroom

about Joe McCarthy. They have had debates in the lunchroom about the
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Korean War of 1949 war. Whether we had a right to be there, whether

our forces should be pulled out, what caused it. These are the things

that, you got to understand at that time in the late 40s and early

50s, the mid-50s, and in the late 50s you had the workers in the shop

who were there at the time the union came in. Most of the guys in the

shop were veterans of the strike, and the veterans of organization

there. And during the 50s, wait a minute, during the 60s, late 50s

and early 60s that's when the work force began to change. They began

to get younger people in who had never been exposed to struggle. The

mistake that the union made I say it was a mistake maybe it was

deliberate. I don't know. They didn't educate their workers about

the struggle. A few struggles took place. Walter was a real good

speaker, talking about we got to do this and got to do, you know.

Convention even, and those things. But they discontinued the Labor

Day parades. They discontinued all the social things the guys used to

g e t t o g e t h e r a n d t h e i r f a m i l i e s . P e o p l e d i d n ' t

attend, began to drop off attending membership meetings and as of

today as I indicated before this is where we are. You don't have that

dedication and that loyalty the understanding that you had with the

veterans of the 30s and the 40s in certain parts of fite 50s late 50s

and the early 60s and just its gone now. You got a completely

different man and woman in the shops today. Occasionally they will be

shwpn what happened and some of them will tell you I'm not interested

in what took place in 1940 and 50. what's that got to do with me?

But that's because you call it brainwashing or whatever you want to

they were never kept aware in my opinion the leadership of the UAW did

not keep pumping home what happened and why it's possible this young
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guy of 19 and 20 years old is operating that machine today. It wasn't

given to him by the Ford Motor Company. Certain things had to happen.

Because you are on that machine today. And he didn't know, they don't

know this. Occasionally a guy would talk about it; what the hell,

what 1950, 40 what happened, I don't know. You mean to tell me yu

used to work for 36 bucks a week. Sixty-two cents an hour, I wouldn't

have did it. I wouldn't have accepted it. Tell a guy, I have nelces

and nephews. I tell them I used to work for 32 cents. He would say

whatl Worked for 32 centsl You got to be crazy! They don't believe

it. Well hell that was big money. I got 62 cents an hour from Ford,

36 bucks a week I was looked upon as the most eligible guy in my

neighborhood. Every woman in the neighborhood want me to marry her

daughter. But in the struggles they have not been through any

struggles. They have never had to battle the police department for

their job. They have never had to battle company goons for their

jobs. I mean when I say battle I mean physically. They never had to

do that. They never had had a foreman come up to him calling him a

black son of a bitch do this or yu hill-billy dog, and these are the

things they used to cone and tell you. They would say look, if you

don't want this job nigger I got some hill-billys right out there on

Miller Road ready to come in here and they would go to that same

southern guy and tell him look you cracker, if you don't want this job

I got a boat load of niggers right out there from Hastings Street

ready to take your job. This is the way he used to do. Pit one guy

against the other. And this is a matter of record. It 's not what I 'm

trying to exaggerate or anything. This is what they used to do. And

t h e y w o u l d t e l l t h e m , l o o k , i f y o u w a s a ( ? ) b o r n g u y I g o t
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a lot of Mohaks from Italy can't speak two words of English but they

are ready to move on this job. Not if you don't want to work in here

you get the hell out. And they would pit one against the other or try

to. But I think as I indicated before that most of the guys who was

in the forefront of the organization at Ford, this is one of, the some

of the things they highlighted and were determined that they would not

be any division among the workers that they were trying to organize

and to a great, I would say to a degree they were successful, I won't

say it was 100% but I think the education that the Ford workers

received form the organizers of the union at Ford carried over and

some semblance of it is still there today. Because Local 600 used to

be looked upon as an island of democracy surrounded by a sea of

reaciton. That's what it was. We would go to the convention and we

were just surrounded by people from other locals who was opposed to

us. They weren't ready to accept our way of doing things. But we

stood firm but as I say we battled for it. Had many fights on

convention floors on different issues. But the Ford workers I'd say,

to me were the best educated as far as actually knowing what true

unionism met.

I: Well they got up a lot of guys from the South. How did they respond

to the union?

R: The people from the South?

I : Y e a h .

R: You had some who—let me give you an example. When they conducted the

vote out at Local 600 for election of whether they wanted a union

there are not; there was 20 some thousand that voted against the union.

Around 80 almost 90 thousand people in the Local 600. There was about



25

21 or 22 thousand voted against the union. But in answer to your

question about the people from the South, at that time when we were

trying to organize the UAW the Depression was all over the country.

It wasn't no longer confined to Detroit. Even though with so many

racial prejudices in the way of thinking in the South were those who

came here and whatnot. They had no choice. But there was still some

who didn't believe in the union you still have some today who don't

believe in the Union at Local 600. Based on against what I have said

before the willingness of the organizers to take positions to get the

people who they were trying to organize and to realize and understand

what it meant to have a union and the way they presented it. It was

acceptable to sane of the people from the South. Because we had sane

southern guys who were working at Ford at that time, they were good

union people. They helped organize it you know and some of them came

right in and became real good union leaders at the Local 600. The

bottom line in answer to yur question you get heavily pressured and I

hope you and your husband never had to go through one. I don't think

you ever have witnessed people eating out of garbage cans. They say

the recession is on now, but where 90 percent of the population of a

city as large as Detroit was out of work. There wasn't feny work, you

know. Where families whole families were on the move all across the

country. I'm coming to New York to get a job, people in New York

coming to Detroit and there are no damn jobs, you know. And when

shanties out in the boondocks are built for whole families to live in,

people living in cars and people going around to these markets where

there was a possibility of food, picking up rotten potatoes cutting

the rotten off to salvage some part of that potato that may be good.
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And they would bring them hone and put them in water to cook. No meat

in them, just cook them in water you know. I have seen this happen.

And you see people don't have any clothes to wear. A guy wi l l wear,

you wear a pair of shoes to go someplace and you come back and let

your bro ther have them. I d id th is w i th my own bro ther. I have had

brothers, we had three or four pair of shoes for 9 people you know.

And these are the kind of conditions that would make a person want to

( ? ) . T o b e f r a n k a n d i t h a s b e e n s a i d , a n d I a g r e e w i t h i t

i f Roosevelt had not been elected there would have been a di fferent

form of government here . Rooseve l t hadn ' t beat Hoover. I f Hoover had

s tayed i n , i t wou ld have been a d i f f e ren t k ind o f po l i t i ca l sys tem in

t h i s c o u n t r y. I b e l i e v e d t h a t . B e c a u s e p e o p l e w e r e r e a d y f o r i t a n d

they didn' t give a damn what i t was they were going to get i t , you

know. He d id a heck o f a job . I ' l l have to say Rooseve l t saved th is

country in my opin ion. I don' t know what form of government i t would

have been but I'm damn sure it would have not been the one we exist

under today. I don' t know whether i t was the communist government, I

don' t know whether i t would have been a socia l is t , I don' t know

whether i t would have been a d ictatorship, I don' t know what i t was.

but they were damn sure ready to scrap the one we had and the only

reason why they voted for Roosevelt was what Roosevelt said he was

going to do. He said you want to change your president want a change

and I 'm going to te l l you just what I 'm going to do. And these were

t h e t h i n g s t h e y w a n t e d t o h e a r. I ' m g o i n g t o c r e a t e j o b s . I ' m g o i n g

to have the federal government provide jobs for you and your fami ly.

I f you elect me I 'm going to guarantee you a job and i f you don't have

a job then you vote me out at the next e lect ion. He kept h is promise.
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He wasn ' t ge t t i ng a he l l o f a l o t o f money fo r i t . Bu t they wen t to

work. CCC, WPA, PWW, everyth ing i t was. Ar t is ts , actors , jus t common

workers they had someth ing to do. They were get t ing pa id . But before

they didn't have a damn thing coming in, and nowhere to go to get

anyth ing. Noth ing. And again I say I hope that you and your husband

wi l l never have to go through a depress ion l ike i t was that I 've been

through. You want to see mass suffer ing, i f you want to see sane real

i n d i g n i t i e s a s f a r a s h u m a n b e i n g s c o n c e r n e d ( ? ) n o t

becuase they wanted it but because they had nowhere to go. And whole

fami l ies l ined up. B ig open fire hoping somebody around would g ive

them something to eat, they didn' t have any place to stay, soup

kitchens and you could just imagine what it was to be able to buy a

whole slab of smoke bacon l ike that wrapped up for 35 cents. A whole

s lab. But where the he l l were you go ing to get the 35 cents . You

cou ld r ide the s t ree t ca r here fo r 6 cen ts anywhere a l l over the c i t y.

Where were you going to get the 6 cents from. You could buy any kind

of property you want for $500 but where in the Shll were you going to

ge t $500 fo r i t . You cou ld go in one o f the mos t beau t i fu l

restaurants up in downtown Woodward Avenue here and get a steak

dinner, r ib s teak d inner and mashed potatoes, apple p ie , coffee for 20

cen ts . A s teak d inner. Bu t where in the he l l was you go ing to ge t

that 20 cents. I f you ever want to see i t and I hope you don' t want

to see i t and I don ' t th ink you do, i f you l ive under a major

depress ion where every th ing is down, the money that is ava i lab le , on ly

a f e w p e o p l e g o t i t a n d t h e y w i l l n o t l e t i t g o . M o n e y i t ' s

available, they got i t . And when youjsjee women going to do housework

for 50 cents a day, they scrub floors and cook meals for these people,
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wash their c lothes and i ron them, take their k ids to school and come

home wi th 50 cen ts . That happened r igh t here in the c i ty o f Det ro i t .

Well, 50 cents was better than nothing. Some people ask why are you

so bi t ter. Wel l , what in the hel l do you want me to be? Do you want

me to laugh about it and say I 'm happy this way. I know damn well

tha t i f tha t cond i t i on comes aga in I don ' t th ink tha t the Amer ican

p e o p l e , n o t t h i s g e n e r a t i o n o f p e o p l e w i l l s t a n d f o r i t . I d o n ' t

th ink so . I know what was happen ing when i t fina l l y d id , as I to ld

you before when Roosevel t got e lected. The revolut ion was in the

making. The whole country was on the verge of tak ing. To g ive an

example, people who fought in World War I who the government had

promised they were going to give them a bonus and the adminsitration

under President Hoover refused to give i t to them. They marched on

Wash ing ton. These are guys less than 10-15 years or a l i t t le longer

had been out of the Armed Serv ices of thei r country. They went to

WAshington and what happened. They turned so ld ier against so ld ier.

Some were ki l led they were ran out. They ran over with horses and

here are people who had committed themselves to give up their l i fe for

the events of the country by an order of a president who had never

been near a damn gun or none of his family had ever picked up a gun to

de fend the coun t ry. He was tu rn ing ano ther so ld ie r aga ins t the o ther

to keep these rebel rousers out of Washington. I guess you read about

i t . I ' m p r e t t y s u r e y o u r g r a n d f a t h e r, y o u r f a t h e r c o u l d t e l l y o u s a n e

th ings abou t th i s I don ' t know.

I : In 1948 when Wal lace was runn ing fo r p res ident was there much ac t iv i ty

in Local 600 about t ry ing to get out the progress ive vote?
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R: Yeah some people got punished for that a lso. When Wal lace ran for

president I was accused of going against the UAW pol icy, I supported

Wallace. So did Coleman Young, the present mayor and there was some

act iv i ty. There was a lo t o f people in the Loca l 600 who suppor ted

Wal lace. There was those who d idn ' t .

End Tape 3, Side B
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Tape #4, Side A
David Moore

R: I said supported my, I mean • • .

I : Not the whole local?

R: No not the whole local. Some people supported it and some of the nits

and the individuals in the local supported it. The local as a whole

did not support it.

I: Do you think you got a pretty good vote form Ford Workers for Walalce?

R: When you say a pretty good vote I would say if those who say they vote

when you can never tell what a person will do when they vote. I can't

say whether it was a pretty good vote or not. I would say it would

have been a pretty good vote if they had voted for Wallace when they

went behind the curtain I don't know what they actually voted for.

But there were those who were openly supportive of Wallace.

I: I think in the general population the Wallace vote was very small,

nationwide. The percentage of the vote Wallace got was 6% or

something like that. But do you think it was much higher than that at

Ford's?

R: Say that again.

I: Wallace got about 6% of the vote nationwide. Do yu think he got a

higher percentage form the Ford workers?

R: I don't know. To answer your question to be truthful about it, I

wouldn't know. I couldn't say whether he got more than 6 percent f%m

the Ford workers or not. I would imagine he would, based on what I

believe, what I saw rather openly displayed by the leadership out

there, you know whether the membership supported the leadership of
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those l eade rs ra the r who suppo r ted Wa l l ace . I don ' t know. I wou ldn ' t

want to make a guess.

I : But Wal lace d id come to speak to you.

R: Oh yeah he came to speak here in Detroit .

I : D id they have a lo t o f peop le show up?

R: Yeah he had quite a few but some were fr ightened away i t wasn't as

much as I would say that I guess Wallace wanted or sane of those who

were support ive of Walalce wanted, but there were quite a few people

in the labor movement in Detroit who supported Wallace, some of hftem

d idn ' t open ly do i t . Some sa id "Look , I 'm w i th you , bu t I wou ld

r a t h e r n o t b e p u b l i c l y i d e n t i fi e d . " A n d y o u m u s t u n d e r s t a n d t h a t a t

the t ime that Wal lace ran the hyster ia was on at that t ime. Truman

had dumped him, the Red scare was on. People would be called before

Un-American Committee and in general overwhelmingly the labor movement

was against Wal lace.

I : Excep t f o r some o f t hose p rog ress i ve un ions .

R : R igh t . Bu t I say overwhe lm ing ly now I sa id we l l you take some loca ls

in the UAW I think the ILWU was supportive of him. Sane sections of

the UE, the Uni ted Elect r ic Workers, and the Butcher 's un ion, the

meatcutters union and Packing house workers.
oI : W h a t k i n d o f e f f e c t d o y u t h i n k t h a t t h e , y o u w e r e t a l k i n g a l i t t l e

b i t ear l ie r about that House Un-Amer ican Act iv i t ies Commit tee and

later on the Senate Committee came and of course Reuther's

admin is t ra to rsh ip ove r the loca l . How much o f an e f fec t on loca l

a c t i v i t e s d o y o u t h i n k t h e y h a d ? D i d i t s t i fl e i t ?

R : Ye a h . I t h a d a d e v a s t a t i n g e f f e c t o n t h e l e f t . T h e y w o u l d h a v e n e v e r

got in the place except the government the committees had the support
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of the unions, had the suppor t o f the UAW. They u l t imate ly suppor ted

them. I ' l l g ive yu an example. When they had us at the convent ion

our t r i a l a t the conven t ion they had the FBI s i t t i ng up in the

audience and I can prove it(?) and I can remember a time a leader,

they would permit a government agent, pol ice to cone into a convent ion

he would have been thrown out and tarred and feathered, you know. And

i t was a hyster ia sweeping the country at that t ime and the labor

movement here and the UAW and I make this openly, my accusation, they

were par t o f i t and the record shows tha t they were par t o f i t . The

speeches that were made by some of the UAW leaders at that time the

ex ten t they went to e l im ina te oppos i t ion w i th the accusa t ion o f

communists. You don't see any damn thing in the labor movement's

history at that t ime where they ever took issue wi th the government on

the House Un-American Activit ies Committee or J. Edgar Hoover.

Noth ing. Noth ing at a l l where you read any publ icat ion that the UAW

ever put out that they disagree took on or say i t was wrong. And wi th

tha t k ind o f a s i tua t ion in your o rgan iza t ion w i th your own leader

suppor t ing i t , jus t th ink what k ind o f a he l l o f a chance fo r example

Judy would have. And I say th is w i th that recorder go ing I w ish I

could say more determinedly than I am and I don't know what I can do,

to say again yeah that they openly supported the Un-American

A c t i v i t i e s C o m m i t t e e i n e l i m i n a t i n g o p p o s i t i o n . T h e y f u r n i s h e d

records to the Un-American Committee of people.

I : And then a f te rwards do you th ink tha t had a b ig impac t on the leve l o f

democracy tha t cou ld ex i s t w i th in the loca l because a l l t hese le f t

wingers were being persecuted.
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R : O h i t h a d a h e l l o f a n i m p a c t o n i t . I t d i s c o u r a g e d p e o p l e . I t

f re ightened people so the people went in to a shel l . Some people

d idn ' t want to be ident ified and those who s tood the i r gdrunds they

were punished. Some were deported, some families were broken up.

Neighborhoods turned against you, f r iends that yu had over the years

didn't want to associate with you, they would see you coming and turn

and walk the other way or pretend l ike they d idn ' t see you. Guys

would come and tell you,you are all r ight with me but don't come by my

house anymore. Whisper to you I want you to know that indiv idual ly I

think you are a good guy but they tel l me you belong to this or that

and I can't be associated with you anymore. Guys in the labor movement

who supported you wil l come and tel l you I 'm going to vote for yu but

when I come up to vote for you, don't hand me one of your slates. I

don' t want to be embarrassed by not tak ing the s late, I 'm not going to

take a s late f rom anybody. When I come in the vot ing booth I 'm just

going to keep my hands in my pockets. I ' l l vote for you when I get in

there. Guys who you'd helped. Guys who came to you for favors. Guys

who you would take flowers to the hospital when his wife has a baby,

you know. Guys tha t you take up co l lec t ion fo r h i s b i r thday, i t was a

h e l l o f a d e a l . I d i d n ' t l i k e i t a t t h e t i m e b u t I c a m e t o u n d e r s t a n d

i t . T h e y w e r e u n d e r a h e l l o f a l o t o f p r e s s u r e . T h e o l d s a y i n g , i t

takes, the Black people used to say, i t takes a brave fish to swim

u p s t r e a m . A n y d a m n fi s h c o u l d fl o w a l o n g w i t h t h e c u r r e n t . B u t i t

takes a brave fish to swim upstream. And some of these people you got

to understand they were immigrants here. Thei r mothers and fa thers

came here. Some of them that came here themselves and they deported

them. They depor ted them. They broke up fami l ies . They tu rned son
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aga ins t f a the r, daugh te r aga ins t mo the r. I n answer to you r ques t i on ,

y e s i t h a d a h e l l o f a d e v a s t a t i n g e f f e c t o n t h e l e f t . A n d t h e y

haven ' t r ecupe ra ted f r om i t ye t . I don ' t know whe the r t hey eve r w i l l .

They have not.

I : H e r e i s a k i n d o f d i f f e r e n t q u e s t i o n . I k n o w t h a t b e i n g a u n i o n

member you have to spend a lot of time and spend a lot of energy on

un ion a f fa i rs , how does tha t a f fec t your fami ly l i fe and your t ime you

spend wi th your fami ly and al l?

R : W e l l , i t d i d h a v e a n e f f e c t . I h a v e s e e n f a m i l i e s d i v o r c e , s e p a r a t e d .

Me, I d idn ' t have a p rob lem. I wasn ' t mar r ied and a t the t ime tha t I

got involved I was on the verge of gett ing married but I had two young

lad ies te l l me whatever you are invo lved in you love i t be t te r than

you do me. I don't know I got so deeply involved I never have run

away f rom marr iage but I never d id get around to i t . I have seen the

effects it has on some and then I have seen some survive. You take a

guy like Dorosh, he and his wife have raised a family and he and Rose

a re s t i l l t oge the r. A guy l i ke Johnny Ga l l o , he and An i t a s t ayed

toge the r un t i l he d ied . Take a guy l i ke B i l l Johnson , he and h i s w i fe

a re s t i l l t oge the r. They rea red k i ds . They have go t g rand k i ds and

grea t g rand k ids , bu t i t a l l depends on the ind iv idua l and I th ink a

lot of women whose fathers had been involved in the union movement and

m a r r i e d , ^ h e y ^ m d e r ^ s t o o d ~ 4 3 e c a u g e - ^ h ^ i n v o l v e d i n

4Jae^4inion ^movement .and married, they understood because their fathers

gave them a lot of educat ion on i t . And when they got involved wi th a

guy and married a guy who is involved in the union well that man is

ou t the re tak ing care o f un ion bus iness so i t w i l l make i t poss ib le

f o r y o u a n d h i s k i d s t o t h e y a r e g o i n g t o h a v e a
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good wage you know this was the att i tude. This was the most union

town in the wor ld I be l ieve fo r awh i le . I f ano ther un ion was on

s t r i ke , you wou ldn ' t da re wa lk ac ross the p i cke t l i ne . You wa lk

a c r o s s a p i c k e t l i n e a t t h e r i s k o f y o u r l i f e , a n d i f a n o t h e r

community well you are going to help that union out. You say hey UE

is on st r ike over at Chairman Stocker(?) okay. Even though guys wi th

me they work and go r i gh t to the p i cke t l i ne . Jus t l eave the i r j ob a t

Ford and go to help the guys that stay in the picket l ine 2 and 3 or

4 hours walking you know. And the same thing would happen to us. But

back to your quest ion again Yeah i t d id have some effect on fami l ies.

Some who were not prepared for it some women were not willing to

accept their husbands being away for long periods of t ime and not

coming home when she got dinner ready, instead of beng home at

5 o 'c lock he d idn ' t ge t home un t i l 8 o 'c lock . And he 's in a meet ing

and some of the guys they were leaving and sane guys would use it as

an excuse and I think now that a woman understands better because a

lo t o f women invo lved in un ion ac t i v i t ies in war work a t tha t t ime.

Women played a hell of a role. Out at Local 600 we have what you call

a woman's auxi l iary. They were wives and daughters or s isters of men

who were actual ly involved. And women played a hel l of a ro le in help

organ iz ing Loca l 600 . A f te r we o rgan ized they p layed a he l l o f a ro le

in some of these things I mentioned to you for some of the social

ac t i v i t i es—organ iz ing chora l g roups . We had what you ca l l Loca l 600

choral ensemble. We had what you call, we had baseball teams, we had

baske tba l l t eams . A l l i n teg ra ted . We had go l f t eams , we had t rack

teams, we had bowling contests and everything.
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I : Do you th ink mos t o f the women tha t were invo lved in the aux i l i a r ies

themselves had come from union homes?

R: Most of them had what?

I : Come f rom union homes where the i r fa thers—

R: Yeah, most of them were yeah they come from union homes. And one of

t h e fi r s t s i t d o w n s t r i k e s t h a t t o o k p l a c e r i g h t h e r e i n t h e c i t y o f

Detroi t was staged by women. I t wasn' t s taged by men. I t was staged

by women right down here on Woodward Avenue candy company. They shut

the door and wouldn' t let nobody in and they wouldn' t come out. They

shut the boss out and wouldn ' t le t h im in . For three days they s tayed

in that candy company down here on Woodward Avenue.

I : W h e n w a s t h a t ?

R : 1 9 2 7 .

I : W h o w .

R : Wa l k e d o u t w i t h a m o u t h f u l l o f c a v i t i e s .

I : Tha t ' s way be fo re t he o the r s i t downs a t F l i n t o r anywhe re .

R : Ye a h t h a t ' s w h a t I ' m s a y i n g o n e o f t h e fi r s t s i t d o w n s t r i k e s t h a t

ever occurred in the s ta te o f Mich igan actua l ly that has been

a u t h e n t i c a t e d . A n d i t ' s a m a t t e r o f r e c o r d . I ' l l b r i n g i t , s o m e t i m e

when you a re back i n De t ro i t , I ' l l b r i ng sane p i c tu res I have . The

women you take up in front. I don' t think would ever have been a

success i f i t had not been fo r the women 's par t i c ipa t ion .

I : I t h i nk I saw a fi lm on t ha t . And i t showed t he women b r i ng i ng t he

f o o d i n .

R: Oh yeah. They would bring food to the windows. One woman she had a

restaurant and her husband a woman recruited other women to cook food

fo r t he s t r i ke rs , dona ted i t f o r t hem. Ev iden t l y Bob Trav i s was one
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of the guys that you read about. Did you ever hear of this book Many

and the Few?

I: Yeah, I have looked through it.

R: You should get that book. Bob Travis.

I: Oh I thought that was Gitlow's.

R: No, it was written by Bob Travis, the Many and the Few and his wife is

s t i l l i n ( ? ) . Y o u s h o u l d t r y t o g e t i n t o u c h w i t h

her. She has a lot of background.

I: The guy you told me about earlier, Chris Austin, was he also involved

with the Local 600?

R: Yeah, yeah. Chris was on the Ford organizing drive and Chris was

editor of the Ford Facts for awhile.

I : A t the beg inn ing?

R: At the beginning. Yes he is one of the first editors we had. He is

real sick now. He had a couple of heart attacks and I saw him, I

talked to him here about a couple of weeks, two or three weeks ago.

And Chris was a leading figure in the organization at Ford and other

places as well. We did a documentary in this office here about three

weeks ago, a video tape documentary on Blacks in the labor movement

here in Detroit. The whole afternoon the guy shot (?)

And he and I, I have been knowing Chris ever since he was going to

high school, Northeastern High School. He used to be one of, intact

he got Eddy Torn and the guys who used to run the 100 yd. dash in 9.6,

9.5, Chris was on the track team at Northeastern High School. And he

got involved in the work councils and began to take on the police

d e p a r t m e n t , I m e a n t h e ( ? ) d e p a r t m e n t h e r e i n t h e c i t y b y

organizing a squad to go back and set people in, back in after they'd
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take them out. He was one of the guys that got me involved in the

movements. But he's a guy that I think you should talk to. He has a

world of background.

I : I s he here in Det ro i t?

R: He l ives here in Detroit , yes.

I: Are there any other people you can think of that are important?

R: Huges(?) Mason, you should talk to Huges Mason.

I : M a s o n ?

R: Mason. You should talk to Dorothy Knight.

I: What were these people? What were their positions?

R: Huges Mason was an organizer of h)te UAW and he was one of the first

Black local union presidents in the city of Detroit. He's got a

history of in sane cases I would say real violent, doing things as far

as defending workers you know and taking on the police department, the

goons and the scabs and whatever you want to call it. And you should

talk to John Conyers, Sr., that's the father of Congressman John

Conyers.

I: That name sounds familiar to me, from the archives what's—

R: You probably saw his name in there. Have you been over to Wayne

State?

I : Y e a h .

R: You don't remember seeing anything in there about me do you?

I: Oh yeah. No, no I do. They have records, they have correspondence in

fact today I was looking at the Reuther file. And they have got all

his notes and everything that were in his file.

R: Those that he wants you to see. Or that they want you to see.

I : Yeah there is something—
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R : I f I s o u n d b i t t e r , I a m b i t t e r . I g o t t o b e a r a h e l l o f a l o t o f

scars some of my own folks from the labor deparmtent, from the labor

movement. Some who got there because of some things I helped do. I

don't say I did them on my own. And I told the guy from ABC he wanted

to do a documentary, I to ld him look, don' t waste my t ime, don' t waste

y o u r t i m e . I s t a r t e d t o t e l l y o u t h i s , a n d I ' m g o i n g t o t e l l y o u w h y

I d idn ' t te l l you th is becuase you to ld me I 'm going to use th is as a

dissertat ion and whatnot and you not a reporter and I have to ld the

repor ter don ' t waste my t ime i f you are not go ing to pr in t what I say,

and I don' t expect you to pr int word for word, but i f you are not

go ing to g ive the t rue fac ts and I cha l lenge anybody to te l l you or to

say t ha t wha t I t e l l you no t t r ue . I f you don ' t wan t t o accep t t he

t ru th a l l r ight don ' t come around. I f you want to go back and check

with the UAW and say well here is what he said and they tell you well

don' t pr in t that , go to hel l don ' t waste my t ime you know. Had a guy

from Life magazine wanted to do some things.

I : Ye a h t h a t ' s w h y i t ' s i m p o r t a n t . T h e r e i s a n e w t r e n d i n h i s t o r y a n d

(break) for rank and fi le ret i rees and I got permiss ion f rom the UAW's

i n t e r n a t i o n a l t o u s e t h e i r l i s t o f a l l t h e p e o p l e t h a t a r e o n t h e

ret i ree's l ist and I w£ant to get some I wanted to ask some quesi tons

so I can get some ideas about how much they participated and what they

thought about thei r leaders and you know t ry to compare the d i fferent

uni ts against each other and so on and I got a prel iminary vers ion of

the ques t ionna i re wr i t ten up . I showed i t to Dorosh las t n igh t and he

d i d n ' t l i k e i t a t a l l . H e t o l d m e i t w a s t o o — H e t o l d m e i t w a s t o o

inqu is i t i ve , ask ing too many ques t ions . Take a look and see i f you
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th i nk t ha t r ank and fi l e guys wou ld go a l ong w i t h i t . I 'm go ing t o

have t o sho r ten i t I know tha t . I t ' s way t oo l ong r i gh t now.

R: I 'm up to quest ion 15 now and I have to agree a lot of people are

s t i l l a f fec ted by the Red scare . And some of the peop le wouldn ' t g ive

you t h i s i n f o rma t i on . You 'd be su rp r i sed . The re was a he l l o f an

e f f e c t i t l e f t o n s o m e p e o p l e . E s p e c i a l l y s a n e o f t h e o l d - t i m e r s .

I : Wha t I 'm go ing to t r y to do i s I 'm go ing to t r y to impress on them

that their names are not going on anywhere and i t 's not going to be

connected wi th—

R: Oh now the names a re no t go ing on i t? We l l t hey a re s t i l l susp ic ious .

R: I don' t know what Wal ter to ld you but i t , I was a guy not knowing what

I knew now do you know what I mean and had to answer these quesitons

I 'd say who the hel l are you working for the FBI.

That 's exact ly what he sa id .

I : We did some, in 1967 I think somebody did a survey, I th ink the UAW

i tse l f d id a su rvey o f some o f the po l i t i ca l v iews o f the un ion

members and al l . I 'm going to try to get a copy of that and see how

they phrase the quest ions and a l l . Do you th ink the way I 'm do ing i t

is too abrupt, the way that I am asking the quest ions there?

R: I , as I sa id be fore some peop le a lo t o f peop le were a f fec ted by the

Red scare and some of their families, younger generation has come on

since then their mothers and fathers have told them what had happened

and they are reluctant to answer and give, even though you don't

bother to g ive the names you know. I th ink you should k ind of rev ise

i t , in what way I don ' t know as of now. I say I got to quest ion 15.

I haven ' t go t any fu r the r. Bu t I t h ink mos t o f h tem w i l l g i ve you an

a n s w e r i f i t w a s n ' t s u c h a d i r e c t q u e s t i o n y o u a s k e d . I ' l l g i v e a n
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example: Did you ever go to a ra l ly of the unemployment counci l .

Well, the unemployment councils was as far as the Un-American House

Commit tee was a communist outfit they cal led i t .

I : So they wou ld be sca red to say.

R: Yeah. Some of them were and some of them wouldn't . They would say

hell yeah I went. And did you go because you were a communist? Hell

no I didn' t go because—I went because that was just something that

was t ry ing to he lp me bet ter my condi t ion. I would not answer.

I : I w a n t t o a s k t h a t q u e s t i o n b e c a u s e i t s e e m s l i k e i t ' s i m p o r t a n t f o r

ra is ing the consc iousness i f they went through that per iod except

.

R : You wou ld find some who wou ld . I won ' t say a l l o f t hem. I won ' t say

al l of them. But just l ike the guy from ABC told me over the phone

from New York he said look I anfraving one hell of a time even getting

people to admit that they even took par t in the demonstrat ions in the

30s, you know what I mean. I can' t th ink of the guy's name. He

wanted to come out and do about 3 months. Well, I don't know but I

have to agree with Dorosh I didn't know you had had %is kind of

conversat ion wi th h im but though you want to get that , that 's your

c o p y r i g h t .

I : I f y o u w a n t i t y o u c a n k e e p i t . I h a v e s e v e r a l c o p i e s .

R: Yeah I 'd l i ke to keep a copy. / Wel l l i ke a couple o f suggest ions he

T " h a d s a i d w a s l i k e q u e s t i o n N o . 3 . H e s a i d e v e n i f p e o p l e w e r e fi r e d

he sa id they aren ' t go ing to put that down. And I sa id nobody is

go ing to pu t ou t tha t they were fi red . He says re t i red you know i f

they a re on the re t i red l i s t , then oh the ones h too qu i t ea r l y tha t ' s

what he said.
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I : I f o n a p e n s i o n t h e y c o u l d b e —

But he was saying that question No. 2 what was your last year at

Rouge. He sa id ask what is your senor i ty date which is a lo t eas ier.

Wh ich i s a lo t eas ie r—

R: Yeah, they are at home, theydon' t have anything to do and they want,

they would be glad for you to ask them these kind of quesitons y9u

know what I mean. Others would be re luc tant . I don ' t th ink when I

say t h i s I t h i nk you shou ld g i ve i t a t r y. I ag reed w i t h Do rosh .

Some people who have been (?) wouldn't want to answer. And you find

others they wil l say yeah I was at the unemployment council once,

some of them wil l say what the hell I got one foot in the grave and

one in the undertaker. So ain't a damn thing they can do to me now.

Some of them are in their 80s and late 70s early 80s or 90s you know

what I mean.

I : Do you th ink tha t - i t ^ -s the loca l o r in te rna t iona l had the i r name on my

le t ter say ing that they would , and they sa id that they wanted to look

i t over before I send i t out and I 'm go ing to send i t out through

t h e i r m a i l i n g s e r v i c e .

R: Some of the o ld guys are s t i l l as susp ic ious as he l l o f the UAW.

I : H o w a b o u t t h e l o c a l .

R: Wel l i f you say the UAW would be wi l l ing to put thei r name put the

internat ional union 's name on your let ter then go ahead that may help.

I : T h a t m a y h e l p .

R: At least they would feel i t was a UAW sponsored th i ing and supported

by the UAW. That would help. Wait a minute I 'm going to ask you a

d i r e c t q u e s t i o n .

I : S u r e .
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R: When you went to the UAW to ask certain informat ion say on this for

example what you just to ld me that they are wi l l ing to let you use

the i r o f fic i a l name , d i d t hey pu t you on any r es t r i c t i ons?

I : Ye a h w e l l i t w a s a h a r d t i m e g e t t i n g i t . T h e w a y t h a t w e d i d i t , m y,

the professor I 'm working with knows Sheldon Freidman who is the

educat iona l d i rec to r and he wro te Fre idman a le t te r ask ing h im i f i t

would be possible for us to use the l is t and from him i t went to the

reg iona l d i rec tor, 1A, Reg ion 1A.

R : E r n i e L o f t i n .

I : Yeah Lo f t i n . And i t sa t w i t h h im fo r a l ong t ime and I was i n con tac t

with George Schwartz who is Freidman's assistant and I was cal l ing

back and fo r th and fina l l y a f te r I th ink abou t th ree months he ca l led

back and said that we can use it that they were not going to give us a

l is t they were jus t go ing to g ive us the permiss ion to use the mai l ing

service. So we tel l them give them the stuff and say what we want to

do and then they wil l mail i t out so we don't get to see the names or

a n y t h i n g l i k e t h a t . A n d t h e o t h e r r e s t r i c t i o n i s t h a t t h e y w a n t t o

look i t over and approve i t before we send i t out .

I : G i v e i t a t r y . I f i t w i l l h e l p y o u . I h o p e i n y o u r e f f o r t s t o g e t

in format ion together you can get peop le to ta lk .

End Tape 4, Side A


